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L o | SHAPING

OUR
STRATEGY

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

As 2000 was coming fo a close, it became clear that an economic slowdown was
likely. WVith this in mind, we set two main objectives for 2001, Qur first objective was
fo ensure that our core operations were well positioned for the anficipated recessionary
environment. We wanted fo be well insulated from the pofential reduction in demand that
would accompany a softer economy. Our second cbjective was 1o exit our non-core investments
and exclusively focus on the execution of our core New York Tri-State area real estate siralegy. We
were determined fo fake the necessary sfeps fo remove the distraction of these non-core activifies.
We are pleased 1o report that we successtully met our first objective. During 2001, we adjusted
our strategy to appropriately reflect our more cautious outlock.
+ We pursued early lease renewals to
address rollover exposure reducing our
lease expirations to &% in 2002 and
10% in 2003.
» We established more cautious
underwriting stondards as they related
fo commencing new developments and
pursuing acquisitions, reducing our
active value creation pipeline from a
high of over $500 million to less than
$80 million and significantly reducing
our investment activity.
Scott Rechler
Chairman of the Executive Commitiee and
CoChief Executive Officer
Donald Rechler

Chairman of the Board and
CoChief Executive Officer




» We commenced a disposition program fo strengthen our balance sheet while the institutional
investment market remained atfractive. With the sale of over $300 million of non-core assets
and joint venture interests, we created significant value achieving an average unleveraged
internal rate of retun {"IRR") of 13.1%.

» We refinanced floating rate debt to capitalize on low fixed interest rates by refinancing
$325 million of debt af a weighted average rate of ©.8% and a weighted average term

of 8.8 vears. ‘

Our second objective was fo lake the appropriate actions to exit our non-core activities. We
were particularly focused on exiting the loans relating to Frontline Capital Group and RSVP since
they were the most disfracting 1o cur management team. By way of background, we established
Frontline and RSVP in 1998 to pursue real estate related technologies and non-traditional real
estate models.  We spun Frontline off to our shareholders to comply with REIT rules and limit our
ongoing exposure to these non-core activities. We capitalized the company with $200 million
of commitments for loans or joint veniure invesiments. After a successful run, Frontline ran info
problems when the “tech bubble” burst. Through the middle of 2001, it appeared that Frontline
was going to successfully sell one of its largest assets at a price that would be more than sufficient
to repay our loans.  Unfortunately, in June the potential sale collapsed. VWe immediately began
lo take action to mitigate our loss and address potential conflicts. Ve established a commitiee of
independent directors 1o lead this process with the support of an independent investment bank and
legal counsel. In November 2001, we esiablished a valuation reserve of $163 million against
the invesiments in the Frontline loans and the joint ventures with RSVP. We were hopeful that the
Frontline and RSVP initiatives would have created value for Reckson and our shareholders. We
are obviously deeply disappointed by the outcome but pleased to have this behind us. |

Qur core business continues to perform well and benefit from the actions we have taken over
the last decade. Qur fully integrated infrastructure, high quality portfolio and local expertise
provide us with a significant competifive advaniage. Our 2001 operating results reflect the
strength- of our franchise and the impact of our strategic inifiatives. During 2001, we executed
276 leases encompassing 2.6 million square feet, representing 13% of our folal perffolio. We
grew our same properly net operafing income ["NOI") 7.9% on a cash basis and 7.0% on
a GAAP basis. We re-leased expiring space in our porficlio with GAAP rents that were 21%
higher and cash rents that were 11% higher than what the prior tenants were paying.

Reckson has never been better positioned to compete.



SHAPING
OUR
MARKETS

Over the past six yeers, we have buili Reckson into one of the leading redl
esfate companies throughout the New York TriState area. Our strategy has been,
and continues to be, to maintain our focus in the New York Tri-State region. We
are confident in this strategy due to cur management team's years of experience in these
markets and the New York TriSicte area's strong underlying market fundamentals. The
New York Tri-State area has one of the healthiest real estate markets in the country. It is an
enormous market with over 635 million square feet of commercial office space — larger than
the greater metropoliton San Francisco, Chicago and Washington, D.C. markets combined.
There is never a dearth of activity or opportunily in @ market of this scale.

The New York Tri-Stale real estate markets are mature markets. There is a constraint on new
supply due to the in-fill nature of these markets, the lack of land available for development and
the difficult regulatory environment.  As a matter of fact, in 2001, long Island, Wesichester,
Stamford and New York City represented four of the five markets with the lowest exposure to
new development as a percent of tolal inventory of major markets in the United States.
Demand is driven by a number of diverse industries such as financial services, consumer
oroducts, computer software, pharmaceuticals, media, defense and telecommunications.

Teday, Reckson is the only commercial real estate company with @ significant presence in all
of the key markets in the New York Tri-State area. In addition, we are the largest owner of
Class A office properties on long Island and in Westchester, the second largest in Storﬁford,
Connecticut, and one of the most active real estate companies in Northern New Jersey and
Manhattan. In each of these markets, we have established a local franchise that provides us
with a significant competitive advaniage. Ve mainicin exceptional relafionships with the local
municipalifies and civic groups, frades and vendors, and the commercial recl estate and
greater business communities.  We are part of the fabric of each of these markets.

Qur local infrastructure coupled with the support of our regional franchise
enables us to significantly enhance our performance.  For example, during 2001,
we mainfained an office occupancy that was 6% greater than our overall markets

and we achieved market rents that were generally higher than the market
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averages. Our local presence also provides us with the ability to seek out unique investment
opportunities ~ we do not wait for the markefing brochure to hit our desks. We use our local
relationships, market knowledge, real estate expertise and track record to identify and creatively
pursue investiment opportunities.

In addition, because of our unique franchise in the New York Tri-State region, we are an
affractive partner to institutions who want to invest in these markets. Over the last 18 months,
we hove completed two substantial joint veniures with two of the nation’s highest quality
institutions, for a total of $357 million. We completed a strategic joint venture transaction with
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association {"TIAA-CREF"} in September 2000, for the sale of @
49% ownership interest in eight suburban office properties, for approximately $136 million.

In December 2007, we completed a strategic joint venture transaction for the sale of a 49%
interest for $221 million in 219 Third Avenue to New York State Teachers' Retirement
System {"NYSTRS").

{Left 1o Right)

F D. Rich Il - Chief Information Officer and Senior Vice President

Salvatore Campofranco - Managing Director, YWesichester/Connecticut and Senior Vice President
Todd Rechler - Managing Director, New Jersey and Senior Vice President

Philip Waterman IIl - Managing Director, New York City and Senior Vice President



New York City Case Study

We believe that our New York City franchise serves as a good example of how Reckson
can leverage ifs local infrastructure and regional focus to create value. We established a
presence in New York City in 1999 after developing o significant presence in each of the
New York Tri-State suburban markets. Our entry info New York City was through the acquisition
of Tower Realty Trust.  After establishing an experienced management team and selling Tower's
non-Class A assefs, we set out fo pursue additional invesiment opportunities in New York City.
Many viewed these aclivities with skepficism due to the competitive nature of the Manhatian
recl estate market.

Our first investment after the Tower acquisition was 919 Third Avenue where we acquired a
non-performing mortgage from a Jopanese lending syndicate.  The mortgage was secured by
the 1.4 million square foot office tower whose largest tenant was moving out of 705,000 square
feet. The first mortgage note, with an outstanding balance in excess of $425 million including
interes!, was acquired for $278 million within 30 days after identifying the opportunity. Ve then
set out over the next year and a half to clean up the ownership structure, re-tenant the vacated
space, complete an $87 million capital improvement program and refinance the building
with a $250 million, 10 year morigage at a 6.867% rate. The success of this value-added
investment culminated in the sale of @ 49% interest in the property to NYSTRS based on @ tofal
property valuation of $450 million, providing us with an unleveraged IRR of 16% on the interest
sold. In 2002, we are projecting a 23% leveraged return on our remaining invesiment.

Our second New York City investment was 1350 Avenue of the Americas, a 540,000 square
foot office tower on 551 Streel. We purchased the property for $234 per square foot with
average rents in the building that were 40% below market. Since acquiring the property, we
re-lecsed over 78,000 square feet at average base rents that were 60% higher than the prior
tenants were paying and we completed a $14 million copital improvement plan. Today, we are
generating a 9.7% unleveraged return on the property and estimate that in-place rents remain
35% below market.

Equally as imporiant to the success of our invesiments in New York Cily is what it has done
to our overall franchise. By establishing Reckson as one of the premier landlords in the
New York City market, we have been able to develop relationships and gain access to opportunities

that enhance the entire Reckson franchise.



The Impact of September 1 1% on Our Markets

The New York real estate markets were significantly impacted by the /11 tragedy. First,
there was the immediate impact of the permanent destruction of over 13 million square feet of
space and the displgeement of thousands of tenants. Within days, there was a chaotic flury of
inquiries from companies looking for replacement space anywhere in the New York Tri-State
area. For a short period, it looked as if there was going fo be @ substantial shortage of quality
office space in the greater New York area. At Reckson, we sef a clear corporate policy to
assist displaced tenants by any means possible. Ve evaluated every possibility to create space
by approaching our tenants that had excess space and accelerating certain development
projects to the extent that demand warranted. VWe were pleased that we were able 1o
accommodate space requirements for American Express by leasing 195,000 square feel fo
them that was formerly leased by AT&T in Short Hills, New Jersey.

By the beginning of October, it became clear that the potential space shortage was going fo
be mitigated by sublet space being placed on the market by companies that wanted 1o trim their
lease obligations in the face of the increased economic uncertainty. Many displaced tenants
chose to consolidate into existing facilities versus seeking replacement space. Within weeks,
Manhatian's overall vacancy rate shot up to 8.4% due to the addition of 6 million square feet of
sublet space.

The New York Tri-State markets were not immune fo the excess demand that was generated
by companies pursuing overly aggressive expansion during 2000. The good news is that new
supply remained in check and most of the increased availability is sublet space which typically is
removed from the market more rapidly than direct space as the economy begins to recover.

Over the long-term, we believe that we are uniquely positioned 1o meet the needs of
companies as they re-evaluate their real estate sirategies following 9/11. We believe that the
advent of new fechnologies that make working in muliiple locations feasible, the value being
placed on business continuity, security and employee retention, as well as the focus on operating
cost reductions, will encourage more companies fo consider a deceniralized real estate strategy.
Morgan Stanley’s recent announcement to acquire a 600,000 square foot facility in
Weslichester supports this belief. Wit our portfolio located within one hour of New York City,
we have a significant competifive advantage as companies consider decentrclizing throughout

the region.
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New York City Case Study

We believe that our New York City franchise serves as a good example of how Reckson
can leverage its local infrastructure and regional focus fo create value. We established a
presence in New York Gity in 1999 after developing a significant presence in each of the
New York Tri-State suburban markets. Our entry info New York City was through the acquisifion
of Tower Realty Trust. After esfablishing an experienced management team and selling Tower's
non-Class A assets, we sef out o pursue additional investment opporiunities in New York City.
Many viewed these aclivities with skepticism due to the competitive nature of the Manhatian
real estate market.

Qur first investment after the Tower acquisition was 919 Third Avenue where we acquired a
non-perforrﬁmg morigage from a Japanese lending syndicate. The morigage was secured by
the 1.4 million square foot office tower whose largest tenant was moving out of 705,000 square
feet. The first morigage note, with an outstanding balance in excess of $425 million including
interest, was acquired for $278 million within 30 days after identifying the opportunity. Ve then
set out over the next year and a half to clean up the ownership siruciure, re-tenant the vacated
space, complete an $87 million capital improvement program and refinance the building
with a $250 million, 10 year morigage ot a 6.867% rate. The success of this value-odded
investment culminated in the sale of a 49% interest in the property to NYSTRS based on a fotal
property valuation of $450 million, providing us with an unleveraged IRR of 16% on the interes!
sold. In 2002, we are projecting a 23% leveraged return on our remaining invesiment.

Qur second New York City invesiment was 1350 Avenue of the Americas, a 540,000 sauare
foot office tower on 551 Street. We purchased the property for $234 per square foot with
average rents in the building that were 40% below market. Since acquiring the property, we
re-leased over 78,000 square feet ot average base rents that were 0% higher than the prior
tenants were paying and we completed a $14 million capital improvement plan. Today, we are
generaling a ©.7% unleveraged return on the property and estimate that in-place rents remain
35% below market.

Equally as important o the success of our investments in New York City is what it has done
to our overall franchise. By establishing Reckson as one of the premier landlords in the
New York City market, we have been able to develop relationships and gain access 1o opportunities

that enhance the entire Reckson franchise.



SHAPING THE
VISION OF
OUR FUTURE

During 2002, we are commitied o achieving our objectives by executing our New York
Ti-State area stategy with a renewed focus and doing what we have done best over the
last 44 years, which is to create value by confinuing fo operate our portfolio at the highest
standard of performance and execuling on opportunistic recl estate fransactions.

As we look forward, we are both excited and cautious. VWe are excited by how well
positioned we are as a company. Our franchise has never been stronger. Our tleam s at

the top of its game, our exposure o o softening economy has been well miligated and our

{Left to Right)

Mitchell Rechler - Chief Adminisiralive Officer and Co-President

Michae! Maturo - Chief Financial Clficer, Treasurer and Executive Vice President
Gregg Rechler - Chief Operating Officer and Co-President

[Seated)

Roger Rechler - Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President



balance sheet is as strong as it has ever been. As opportunities arise, we are well poised to
capitalize on them and have the potential lo crecte significant value.  That being said, we are
cautious about the current market environment. It is challenging fo start a year with a 95%
occupied portfolio and expect to maintain it af those levels in the midst of an economic slowdown.
In addition, while our balance sheet and liquidity are strong, the investment markels remain
competitive. Thus, opportunities might not be priced at levels that we would deem atiractive.

So what are we going fo do in 2002 - we will ake steps to enhance our franchise value
and mainiain our porffolio’s performance by intensifying our focus on operations, gaining market
share and pursuing opportunities thot increase our presence in the New York Tri-State area.  We
will focus on maximizing the return on invested equity by mainiaining invesiment discipline, being
prepared 1o suffer short-term eamings dilufion if atiractive opportunities are not available and
incorporating capital struciures that enhance our refumns. We will seek lo maximize our per share
net asset value by actively repurchasing our own stock when it frades at attractive discounts to
net assef value, recycling capital through stiotegic asset sales to enhance future net asset valve
and maximizing the value of our land holdings through sales or development. And we will seek
fo achieve these objectives while maintaining a strong balance sheet and oppropriate liquidity
levels.

We thank you for your ongoing support, encouragement and confidence during a challenging

2001. We lock forward to a rewarding and successtul 2002.

S~

Scott Rechler

Chairman of the Executive Commitlee and

Co-Chief Executive Officer

\WMV“&&”_

Donald Rechler
Chairman of the Board and
Co-Chief Executive Officer



. occurred on September 111

SHAPING
A BETTER
While there were certain events that we could anficipate during TOMORROW

2007, there were others that were unfathomable. The horrific events that
h were fragic and dffected us all. We responded by

immediately offering aid to firms which were victims of this fragedy. Through these acts,

we established lasting relationships with firms such as Sandler O'Neill and American Express.
To provide additional support, Reckson established The Reckson Charitable Foundation o
Benefit the Families of the Heroes and Victims of the World Trade Center Tragedy. The
purpose of the Foundation is to raise funds fo be distibuted to an underserved population
which was affected by this tragedy. This fundraising effort is a parinership between Reckson
and its employees, with Reckson matching employee contributions on a five-to-one basis.

To date, over $600,000 has been raised.

A Board of Trustees, consisting of a broad representation of Reckson's organization, has
defermined that the funds will be donated to the families of individuals who worked in various
building service roles at the World Trade Center. This group includes building engineers,
cleaners, maintenance workers and security guards.  The Foundation feels that it is important to
support the families of these individuals for whom we have a great affinity. From our own
experience as a real estate company, we are aware of the high level of commitment of building
service stoff, the value they add
to a property and the dedication

with which they serve.

The Board of Trustees for The Reckson
Charitable Foundation to Benefit the
Families of the Heroes and Victims of
the World Trade Center Tragedy

{Standing - Lefi 1o Right)

Joe Hoban - Westchester/Connecticut
Yiisa Kunze - long lsland

Jackie Andrews - New York City
{Seated - Left to Right)

Tom Chuckas - Westchester/Connecticut
Steve Jennings - New Jersey

Adele Van Dyke - long Island

[Not Pictured)

Gregg Rechler, Miichell Rechler,
Jason Barnett and F.D. Rich Il




CORE IDECLOGY

VISION
Reckson will be the “landlord of Choice” in the New York Tri-State area.

MISSION

We are in the business of improving the qudlity of life in the workplace

through innovation, design excellence and providing premier service.

VALUES

Tenant satisfaction comes first
Do what is right by acting honestly, fairly and maintaining integrity

Act as a team, share knowledge, foster a challenging and

rewarding work experience for all employees

Strive for continued improvement individually and continued progress
as a Company

Be responsible to the communities in which we operate

Treat our shareholders as we would treat our partners

By acting in this manner, we will maximize the value of our Company.




ORK TRI_;STATE REGIONAL STRATEGY

4.0 Million

|ndustrlo|' - 5.9 Million
land - Developob\e Sq. Ft. 1.0 Million
Westchester /Connecticut
Class A Office - CBD* 1.8 Million
Class A Office - Suburban 2.5 Million
Industrial 0.6 Million
land - Developable Sq. Ft. 1.2 Million
New York City
Class A Office - CBD 3.5 Million
. New Jersey
Class A Office - Suburban 2.0 Million
| industrial 0.3 Million
? Lland - Developable Sg. Ft. 1.5 Million
Portfolio Totals
Class A Office - CBD 5.3 Million
Class A Office - Suburban 8.5 Million
Industrial 6.8 Million
land - Developable Sq. Ft. 3.7 Million
_Tvqtoi‘ Square feet in Portfolio™ * 20.6 Million




balance sheet is as strong as it has ever been. As opportunities arise, we are well poised to
capifclize on them and have the potential to create significant value. That being said, we are
cautious about the current market environment. It is challenging to start a year with a 95%
occupied porfolio and expect to mainiain it af those levels in the midst of an economic slowdown.
in addition, while our balance sheet and liguidity are strong, the investment markets remain
compeiitive. Thus, opporfunities might not be priced at levels that we would deem attractive.

So what ore we going fo do in 2002 - we will 1ake steps fo enhance our franchise value
and maintain our portfolio’s performance by infensifying cur focus on operations, gaining market
share and pursuing opportunities that increase our presence in the New York Tri-State area.  We
will focus on maximizing the return on invesied equily by maintaining investment discipline, being
prepared 1o suffer short-term eamings dilution if aftractive opportunities are not available and
incorporating capital structures that enhance our returns. We will seek to maximize our per share
net asset value by actively repurchasing our own stock when it frades at atfractive discounts to
nef asset value, recycling capital through sirategic asset sales to enhance future net asset value
and maximizing the value of our land holdings through sales or development.  And we will seek
io achieve these objectives while maintaining a strong balance sheet and appropriale liquidity
levels.

We thank you for your ongeing support, encouragement and confidence during a challenging
2001. We lock forward fo a rewarding and successful 2002,

Dt~

Scott Rechler
Chairman of the Executive Committee and

Co-Chief Executive Officer

Nt Wona

Donald Rechler
Chairman of the Board and
Co-Chief Executive Cfficer



SHAPING THE
VISION OF
OUR FUTURE

During 2002, we are committed 1o achieving our objectives by executing our New York
TriState area strategy with @ renewed focus and doing what we have done best over the
last 44 vears, which is o create value by continuing to operate our portfolio at the highest
standard of performance and execuling on opportunistic real estate transactions.

As we lock forward, we are both excited and cautious. We are excited by how well
positioned we are as a company. Our franchise has never been stronger. Our team is at

the top of its game, our exposure fo a softening economy has been well miigated and our

[teft 1o Right}

Mitchell Rechler - Chief Administrative Officer and Co-President

Michael Maturo - Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Executive Vice President
Gregg Rechler - Chief Operating Officer and Co-President

[Seated)

Roger Rechler - Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President



FINANCIAL
REVIEW

HOW 2001
SHAPED UP



o 2N e

FINANCIAL CONTENTS

20-28
29
30

32
33-45
46
47

Selected Financial Data

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operctions
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Auditors

Price Range of Common Stock and Distribution Hisfory



~ - . - R

Reckson Associates Really Corp.

Selected Financial Data
‘(in thousonds ‘except per share data and properfy count)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 . 1999 1998 1997

OPERATING DATA:

Total revenues $540,468 $ 509,938 $ 403153 % 266,373 $ 153,395

Total expenses 395,414 373,711 209,111 201,892 107,905
Income {before minorily interests, preferred dividends and

distributions, valuation reserves an extraordinary loss) 145,054 136,227 104,042 64,481 45,490
Preferred dividends and distributions ...........cccooeeii . 23,977 28,012 27,001 14,244 —
Minority tterests ..........oooiiiiiiie O 10,248 20,789 16,209 10,672 8,624
Valuation reserves on investments in affiliate loans and

joint ventures ond other investments .............o..ooeoooiieiins 166,101 — - — -
Extraordinary loss {net of minority interests’ share) . 2,595 1,396 555 1,670 2,230
Net income {loss) ollocable to Class A common Shareholders ... (44,243) 62,989 47,529 37,895 34,636
Net income (loss) allocable to Class B common Shareholders ... (13,624) 23,041 12,748 — —

PER SHARE DATA - CLASS A COMMON SHAREHOLDERS:

Basic:
Basic net income (loss) before extroordinary loss .................. $ (.88) $ 1.49 $ 119§ 100 ¢ 1.13
Extraordingny 1058 .......cccooei i . (.04) [.03}) {.00) {.04) {.07)
Basic net income (loss) ...cooooiiiiil . (.92) 1.46 1.18 96 1.06
Weighted average shares outstanding 48,121 43,070 40,270 39,473 32,727
Diluted:
Diluted net income {loss) before extraordinary loss ................ S (.88) % 1.47 $ 1.18 $ 99 4 IRA
Extraordinary 1085.......ocoooi i . (.04) (.02} .01 {.04) {07)
Diluted net income {loss) ..........ccc.cco.... . (.92) 1.45 1.7 95 1.04
Diluted weighted averoge shares outsionding ... 48,121 43,545 40,676 " 40,010 33,260
PER SHARE DATYA - CLASS B COMMON SHAREHOLDERS:
Basic:
Basic net income (loss) before extraordinary loss ... ... $ (1.26) § 228 §% 191 % - -
Extraordinary 108S ..o . (.06) (.04} (.02) — —
Basic net Income {loss} (1.32) 2.24 1.89 - —
Weighted average shares outstanding ..o 10,284 10,284 6,744 — —
Diluted:
Diluted net income (loss} before extraordinary loss ................ $ (1.26) § 1.62 $ 1.27 $ - % —
Extraordinary 0ss..........oooooiiiii . {.06) (.03) (o) — —
Diluted net income (loss) . (1.32) 1.59 1.26 — —
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ...................... 10,284 10,284 6,744 —_ —
BALANCE SHEET DATA (period end):
Commercial real estate properties, before
accumulated deprecialion. ... $2,880,879 $2,770,607 $2208,399  $1.737,133 $ 1,011,228
Cash and cash equivalents 14) .. . 121,975 17.843 21,368 2,349 21,828
Totol assels ..o . 2,994,218 2,998,030 2,733,878 1,854 816 1,113,257
Morigage notes payable. .. . 751,077 728,971 459,174 253,463 180,023
Unsecured credit facility (4). 271,600 216,600 297 600 465,850 210,250
Unsecured term loan......... . —_ — 75,000 20,000 —
Senior unsecured NOTES ..ot oo 449,463 449,385 449 313 150,000 150,000
Market vatue of equity (1. 1,915,587 2,016,390 1,726,845 1,332,882 1,141,592
Total market capitalization including debt (1 and 2.0 3,251,599 3,397,204 2,993,756 2,199,936 1,668,800
OTHER DATA:
Funds from operations (basic) 13} .........ccooviiiiiiiie $179,687 $ 167,782 $ 130,820 $ Q7,697 $ 69,548
Funds from operations [diluted) 13} ..o $206,288 $ 202,169 $ 161,681 $ 99,450 $ 69,548
Total square f;et {at end of period) ... .. : 20,611 21,291 21,385 21,000 13,645
Number of properties {at end of period) 182 188 189 204 155

{1) Based on the sum of:

(i} the market value of the Company's Class A common stock and operating partnership units lassuming conversion] of 57,469,595, 53,046,928, 48,076,648,
47,800,049 and 44,988,846 af December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively (based on a per share/unit price of $23.36, $25.00,
$20.50, $22.19 and $25.38 ot December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively),

{ii} the market value of the Company’s Class B common stock of 10,283,513, 10,283,513 and 10,283,763 shares ot December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively [based on a per share price of $25.51, $27.19 ond $22.75 at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively),

(iii} the liquidation preference volue of 11,192,000, 11,192,000 ond 15,192,000 shares of the Company’s preferred stock at December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively {based on o per share value of $25.00), ’

(iv} the liquidation preference value of 30,965, 42,518 and 42,518 of the operating parinership’s preferred units at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively (based on @ per unit value of $1,000) and

(v] at December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999, the contributed volue of a minority partners” preferred interest of $85 million.

(2} Debt amount is net of minority. parters” proportionate share of joint venture debt plus the Company’s share of unconsolidated joint venture debt

(3) See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations” for o discussion of funds from operations.

{4) On January 4, 2002, approximately $85 million of the cash proceeds received from the sale of o 49% interest in the property located ot 919 Third Avenue, New York,
NY, wos used to poy down the Company's unsecured credit facility.
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Reckson Associates Realty Corp.

_.Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Resulis of Operutions

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
historical financial statements of Reckson Associotes Realy Corp.
{the "Company’) and related notes thereto.

The Compeny considers certain statements set forth herein to be
forwardHooking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with respect to the
Company's expeciations for future periods. Certain forwarddooking
stotements, including, withaut fimilation, stotements refating to the
fiming and success of acquisilions and the completion of develop
ment or redevelopment of properties, the financing of the
Company’s operations, the ahility 1o lease vacant space and the
ability fo renew or relet space under expiring leases, involve risks
and unceriainties. Although the Company believes that the expec-
tations reflected in such forwarddooking siatlements are based on
reasonable assumptions, the aclual resulls moy differ materially from
those set forth in the forwardHooking statements and the Company
can give no asswiance that its expectation will be ochieved.
Among those risks, frends and uncertainties ore: the general ecor
nomic climate, including the conditions affecting industries in which
our principal tenants compete; changes in the supply of and
demand for office and industrial properiies in the New York Tri-State
area; chonges in interest rate levels; downturns in rental rate levels
in our markets and our ability to lease or release space in a timely
manner at current or anticipated rental rate fevels; the availability of
financing fo us or our tenanis; changes in operating costs, including
utility, security and insurance cosls; repayment of debt owed to the
Company by third parties (including Fronttine Capital Group); risks
associated with joint ventures; and other risks associated with the
development ond acquisition of properties, including risks thot
development may not be completed on schedule, that the tenants
will not take occupancy or pay rent, or that development or oper-
ating costs moy be greater than onticipated. Consequently, such for-
waordooking statements should be regarded solely as reflections of
the Company’s current operating and development plans and esti
mates. These plans and estimates are subject to revisions from time
fo time as oddifional information becomes availoble, and actual
results may differ from those indicated in the referenced statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The consolidoted financial statements of the Company include
accounts of the Company and all majority-owned subsidiaries. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepled in the United States requires man-
agement 1o make estimates and assumplions in certain circum-
stances that offect amounts reported in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and related notes. In preparing these financial
stalements, management has utilized information available includ-
ing its past history, industry standards and the curent econamic
environment among other faciors in forming its estimates and judg-
ments of certain amolnts included in the consolidated financial

statements, giving due consideration to materiality. it is possible that -

the ultimate outcome as anficipated by management in formulating
ifs estimates inherent in these financial statements may not material-
ize. However, application of the critical accounting policies below
involves the exercise of judgment ond use of assumptions as fo
future unceriginties and, as a result, actual resulls could differ from
these estimates. In oddition, other companies may utilize different
estimates, which may impact comparability of the Company's
results of operations fo those of companies in similar businesses.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable
Rental revenue is recognized on a straight line basis, which aver-

ages minimum rents over the teims of the leases. The excess of rents

recognized over amounts contractually due are included in deferred
renls receivable on the Company’s balance sheets. The leases also
typically provide for tenant reimbursements of common area main-
tenonce aond other operating expenses ond reol estate toxes.
Ancillary and other property related income is recognized in the
period earned.

The Company makes estimates of the collectibility of its accounts
receivables related to base rents, tenont escalations and reimburser
ments and other revenue or income. The Company specifically ana-
lyzes tenant receivables and onalyzes hisiorical bad debts, cus:
tomer credit worthiness, current economic trends ond chonges in
customer poyment ferms when evoluating the adequacy of ifs
allowance for doubtful accounts. In addition, when tenants are in
bankeuptcy the Company makes estimates of the expected recovery
of pre-petiion adminishative and domage claims. In some cases,
the ultimate resolution of those claims can exceed beyond @ yeor.
These estimates have a direct impact on the Company's net income,
because o higher bad debt reserve results in less net income.

The Company records inferest income on investments in mort-
gage notes and notes receivable on an accrual basis of account
ing. The Company does not accrue interest on impaired loans
where, in the judgment of managemeni, collection of interest
according to the contractual terms is considered doubtful. Amang
the factors the Company considers in making an evaluation of the
collectibility of interest are: {i) the status of the loan, fii] the value of
the underlying collateral, (iii) the financial condition of the borrower
and liv] onticipated future events.

Gain on sales of real estate are recorded when tifle is conveyed
to the buyer, subject to the buyers financiol commitment being suf-
ficient to provide economic substance 1o the sale.

Real Estate

land, buildings and improvements, furniture, fixiures and equip-
ment ore recorded ot cost. Tenant improvements, which are incluc-
ed in buildings ond improvements, ore also stated of cost.
Expenditures for mainienance and repairs are charged 1o opera-
tions as incurred. Renovations and/or replacements, which improve
or exfend the life of the osset are capitalized and deprecioted over
their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation is computed utilizing the stroightline method over
the estimated useful lives of ten to thirty yeors for buildings and
improvements and five to ten years for furniture, fixiures and equip:
ment. Tenont improvements are amortized on o stroightline basis
over the term of the related leoses.

The Compoany is required to make subjective assessments as 1o
the useful lives of its propertties for purposes of defermining the
amount of depreciation o reflect on an annual basis with respect to
those properties. These assessments have o direct impact on the
Company’s net income. Should the Company lengthen the expect-
ed useful life of a particular asset, it would be depreciated over
more years, and resull in less depreciotion expense and higher
annual nef income.

Assessment by the Comporiy of certain other lease reloted costs
must be made when the Company has a reason to believe that the
tenant will not be able fo execute under the term of the lease as orig:
inally expected.

Long Lived Assets

On o periodic basis, management assesses whether there are
any indicators that the value of the real estate properties may be
impaired. A properly's value is impaired only if management's esti-
mate of the aggregoate future cash flows {undiscounted and without
interest charges) to be generated by the property are less than the
carrying value of the property. Such cash flows consider factors
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such as expected fulure operoting income, frends and prospects, os
well as the effects of demand, competition and other factors. To the
extent impairment has occurred, the loss will be measured as the
excess of the carrying amount of the property over the fair value of
the property.

The Company is required to make subjective assessments as fo
whether there are impairments in the value of is real estate proper
ties and other investments. These assessments have o direct impact
on the Company’s net income, because taking an impairment results
in an immediate negative adjustmentio net incorme.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company hos elected to follow Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock lssued to Employees™ "APB
25" and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock
options because, the alternative fair value accounting provided for
under FASB Siatement No. 123, "Accounting for StockBased
Compensation,” ("Statement 123"} requires use of option valuation
models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock
options. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized
upon the granling of stock options when the exercise price of the
Company’s employee slock options equals the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company provides oddi-
tional pro forma disclosures os required under Stotement 123 in the
nofes to its consolidated financial statements.

Overview and Background

The Reckson Group, the predecessor 1o the Company,
was engaged in the ownership, management, operation, leasing
and development of commercial real estale properties, principally
office ond industrial buildings, ond also owned cenain undevel-
oped land localed primarily on long Islond, New York, In June
1995, the Company completed an initial public offering (the "IPO"),
succeeded fo the Reckson Group's real esiale business ond
commenced operations.

The Company is o selfodministered and sell managed real
esfate invesiment trust ["REIT"} engaged in the ownership, acquisi-
tion, leasing, financing, management and development of office
and industricl properties and alse owns land for futire develop:
ment. The Company’s growth strategy s facused on the commercial
real estate markets in and around the New York tri-state area {the
"Tri-Stale Area”).

As part of the Company's REIT structure it is provided management,
leasing and construction related services through taxable REIT sub-
sidiaries as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, These
services are currently provided by Reckson Management, Inc., RANY
Monagement Gioup, Inc., and Reckson Construction Gioup, Inc.
[collectively, the “Service Companies”). The Operating Partnership
owns a 97% noncontrolling interest in the Service Companies.  An
entity which is owned by certain executive officers of the Company
owns a 3% controlling interest in the Service Companies.

During July 1998, the Compony formed Metropoliian Partners,
IC {"Metropoliton”) for the purpose of acquiring Closs A office
properties in New York City. Currently the Company owns, through
Metropolitan, five Class A office properties aggregating approxi-
mately 3.5 million square feet.

During September 2000, the Company formed a joint venture
[the “Tri-State JV*) with Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association
{"TIAA"] and contributed eight Class A suburban office properties
aggregating approximately 1.5 million square feet to the Tri-Siate JV
for @ 51% majority ownership interest. TIAA contributed approxi-
mately $136 million for o 49% interest in the Tri-Stote JV which was
then distributed to the Company. As & result, the Company realized
a gain of approximately $15.2 million. For purposes of its financial

stotements, the Company consolidates this joint ventuie.

On December 21, 2001, the Company formed a joint venlure
with the New York State Teachers' Retirement Systems {"NYSTRS")
whereby NYSTRS ocquired o 49% indirect interest in the property
located at 919 Third Avenue, New York, NY for $220.5 million
which included $122.1 million of its proportionate share of secured
morigage debt and approximately $98.4 million of cash which
was then distributed 1o the Compony.  As a result, the Company
reclized @ gain of approximately $18.9 million. For purposes of its
financiat statements, the Company consolidates this joint venture.

The Company owns all of is inferests in its real properties, directly
or indirectly, through Reckson Operating Partnership, L.P. (the
“Operating Parinership”). As of December 31, 2001 the Company
owned 182 properties lincluding 11 joint venture properties) in the
TriSiote Area suburbon and CBD markets, encompassing approxi-
maiely 20.6 million rentable square feet, oll of which are managed
by the Compony. These properties consist include of 60 Class A
suburban office properties encompassing approximately 8.5 million
rentoble square feel, of which 42 of these properties or 74% os
measured by square footoge, are located within the Company’s ten
office parks. Reckson hos histerically emphasized the development
and acquisition of properties that are part of lorge scale suburban
office parks. The Company believes that owning properties in
planned office and industrial parks provides certain stiategic advan
tages, including the following: (i) certain tenonts prefer being locat:
ed in a park with other high quality companies o enhance their
corporate image, fii] porks afford tenants certain aesthetic amenities
such 0s @ common landscaping plan, stondardizotion of signoge
and common dining ond recreational facilities, (iii) tenants may
expond lor contiact) their business within o park, enabling them to
centrolize business functions ond {iv) a patk provides tenants with
access fo other tenonis and may focilitate business relationships
between tenants. The properties also include 17 Class A CBD
office properties encompassing approximately 5.3 million rentable
square feet. The CBD office properties consist of five properties
located in New York City, eight properties located in Stamford, CT
and four properties located in White Plains, NY. Additionally, the
properiies include 103 industrial properties encompassing approx-
imately 6.8 million rentable squore feet, of which 72 of these prop-
erties, or 50% as measured by square footage, are located within
the Company’s three industrial parks. The properties olso include
two refail properties comprising approximately 20,000 rentable
square feet.

Thiough its ownership of properties in the key CBD ond suburban
office markets in the Tri-Stote Areq, the Company believes it has a
unique competitive advaniage as the trend toword the regional
decenfrolizotion of the workploce increases. Due o the events of
September 11th, as well as technological advances which fuither
enable decentralization, companies are strategicolly reevaluating
the benefits and feasibility of regional decentalization and
reassessing their longerm space needs. The Company believes this
mulirlocation regional decentralization will continue o toke place,
increasing as companies begin to have better visibility as to the
future of the economy, further volidating our regional strategy of
maintaining a significant morket share in each of the key CBD and
suburban office markets in the Tri-State Area.

The Company also owns approximately 254 acres of land in 12
separate parcels of which the Company con develop approxi-
mately two million square feet of office spoce and approximately
450,000 square feet of industricl space. The Company is also obli-
gated to purchase, during the firsf quanter of 2002, 52.7 acres of
land located in Valhalla, N.Y. on which the Company can develop
approximately 875,000 square feet of office space. In addition,
the Company owns a 32 acre land parcel located in Rye Brook, NY
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which is under contract for sole for approximately $22.3 million.
The closing is scheduled 1o occur during 2002. Since the IPO, the
Company has developed or redeveloped 14 properties encom-
passing apprdximately 2.1 million square feet of office and indus-
trial space.

The Company also owns a 357,000 square foot office building
located in Orlando, Florida and has invesled approximately $17.0
million in a note receivable secured by a partnership Interest in
Omni Partners, L. P, owner of the Omni, a 575,000 square foot
Class A Office Property located in Uniondale, NY, effeciively
increasing its economic interest in the property owning partnership
ond $36.5 milfion under three notes which are secured by o minor-
ity pariner’s preferred unit interest in the Operating Partnership and
cerlain real property.

The market capitalization of the Company at December 31,
2001 was approximately $3.3 killion. The Company’s market cap-
italization is based on the sum of (i} the market value of the
Company’s Class A common stock and common units of limited
partnership interest in the Operating Parinership {"OP Units") [assum-
ing conversion] of $23.36 per share/unil (based on the closing
price of the Company’s Closs A common stock on December 31,
2001), i) the market volue of the Company's Class B common
stock of $25.51 per shore |based on the closing price of the
Company’s Class B common stock on December 31, 2001),
fiii) the liquidation preference value of the Company’s Series A pre-
ferred and Series B preferred stock of $25 per share, {iv) the liqui-
dation preference volue of the Operating Parinership's preferred
units of $1,000 per unit and |v) approximately $1.3 billion finclud-
ing its share of joint venture debt and net of minority partners” inter-
ests share of joint venlure debi] of debt outstanding ot December
31, 2001, As a result, the Company’s total debt to total market
copitalization ratic at December 31, 2001 equoled approximate
ly 41.1%. At December 31, 2001, the Company had opproxi-
mately $122 million of cosh ond cash equivalents on hand of
which approximately $98.4 million was generated from the sale of
@ 49% interest in one of its major CBD assefs. On January 4,
2002, the Compony repaid opproximately $85 million of its short
term debt from its cash and cash equivalents on hand.

During 1997, the Company formed Frontline Capita!l Group,
formerly Reckson Service Industries, Inc., {"Froniline”} and Reckson
Sirategic Venture Partners, LLC ["RSVP?). RSVP is a real estote
venture capital fund which invests primarily in recl estate and real
eslate operating companies outside the Company’s core office and
industrial focus and whose common equity is held indirectly by
Frontline. In connection with the formation and spinoff of Fronitine,
the Operating Portnership established an unsecured credit facility
with Fronttine [the “Frontline Facility”) in the amount of $100 million
for Frontline to use in its investiment ocfivities, operations and other
general corporate purposes. The Compony has advanced opprox-
imately $93.4 million under the Frontline Facility. The Operating
Parinership also approved the funding of investments of up to $100
million relating 1o RSVP (the “RSVP Commitment”], through RSVPcon-
trolled joint ventures {for REITqualified investments) or advances
made to Froniline under an unsecured loan focility {the "RSVP
Facility} having terms similar fo the Frontline Facility ladvances
made under the RSVP Facility and the Froniline Facility hereafter, the
“Froniline Loans”). During March 2001, the Company increased
the RSVP Commitment to $110 million and as of December 31,
2001, approximately $109.1 million had been funded through the
RSVP Commitment, of which $59.8 million represents investments
by the Company in RSVPcontrolled [REMTqualified) joint ventures
and $49.3 million represents loans made to Froniline under the
RSVP facility. As of December 31, 2001, interest accrued (net of
reserves) under the Froniline Facility and the RSVP Facility was

approximately $ 19.6 million.

At June 30, 2001, the Compony ossessed the recoverability of
the Froniline loans and reserved approximately $3.5 million of the
interest accrued during the thiee-month period then ended. In addi-
tion, the Company formed a commitiee of ils Board of Directors,
comprised solely of independent direclors, o consider any actions
to be taken by the Company in connection with the Froniline loans
and ils investments in joint ventures with RSVP. During the third quar-
ter of 2001, the Company noted o significant deterioration in
Froniline’s operations and financicl condition and, based on its
assessment of value and recoverability and considering the findings
and recommendations of the committee and its finoncial advisor, the
Company recorded o $163 million valuation reserve charge, incly-
sive of anticipated costs, in its consolidated statements of operatians
relating 1o ils investments in the Frontline loans and joint venlures
with RSVP. The Company has discontinued the accruat of interest
income with respect to the Fronttine Loans. The Company has also
reserved against its shore of GAAP equity in earnings from the RSVP
controlled joint ventures funded through the RSVP Commitment until
such income is realized through cash distributions.

At December 31, 2001, the Company, pursuont to Section 166
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, charged off $70 million of
the aforementioned reserve directly related to the Frontline Focility,
including accrued interest. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the
Company chorged off an additional $38 million of the reserve
directly related 1o the Fronlline Facility, including accrued interest
and $47 million of the reserve directly related to the RSVP Facility,
including accrued interest,

Frontline is in default under the Froniline loons from the
Operating Partnership ond has reported that it is currently in dis-
cussions with its creditors, including the Company, ond that it may
be required to seek profection from creditors under federal bank-
rupicy lows.

As o result of the foregoing, the net carrying value of the
Company's investments in the Froniline loons and joint venture
invesiments with RSVP, inclusive of the Company’s share of previ-
ously accrued GAAP equity in earnings on those invesiments, is
approximately $65.0 million. Such amount has been reflected in
invesiments in service componies and offiliote loans and joint ven
tures on the Company's consclidated bolonce sheet.

Both the Fronttine Facility and the RSVP Facility have o term of
five years, are unsecured ond odvances under each ore recourse
obligotions of Froniline. Notwithstanding the voluation reserve,
under the terms of the credit facilities, interest accrues on the
Frontline loans ot o rate equal lo the greater of (a) the prime rate
plus two percent and {b) 12% per annum, with the rale on amounts
that are outstanding for more than one yeor increasing annually at
o rate of four percent of the prior year’s rate. In March 20071, the
credit facilities were amended 1o provide that (i) inferest is payable
only of maturity and {ii} the Company may transfer all or any
portion of its rights or obligations under the credit facilities to its
offilictes. The Company requested these changes os o resull of
changes in REIT tax laws.

The Operating Parinership and Frontline entered into an inter-
company agreement [the "Reckson Intercompany Agreement’] to
formalize their relationship at the fime of the spin-off of frontline and
to limit conflicts of interest. Under the Reckson Intercompany
Agreement, among other provisions, (il Frontline granted the
Operating Partnership a right of first opportunity to make any RET-
qualified investment that becomes available to Frontline ond {ii] the
Operating Partnership granted Froniline o right o (o} provide the
Operaling Partnership and ils tenants with commercial services for
occupants of office, industrial and other properly types and
{b] become the lessee of any recl property acquired by the
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Operating Padnership if the Operating Pardnership determines that,
consistent with the Company's siatus as a REIT, it is required to enter
into a “master” lease agreement.

HQ Global Warkplaces, Inc., {'HQ') one of the largest providers
of flexible officing solutions in the world and which is controlled by
Frontline currently operates eleven executive office centers in the
Company's properties, three of which are held through joint ven-
tures. The leases under which these office centers operate expire
between 2008 and 2011, encompass approximately 225,000
square fest and have curent contrclual annual base rents of
approximately $6.7 million. Currently, three of these office centers
lincluding one joint venture location) aggregating 55,000 square
feet with current contractuol annual base rents of $1.4 million are
in defoult under their lease terms. In addition, HQ has been expe
riencing financiol difficulties and on March 13, 2002, voluntarily
filed a petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankiupicy
Code. There con be no assurances as to whether HQ will affirm or
reject its existing leases with the Company. At this time it connot be
determined what impact their financial difficulties and bankruptey fik
ing will have on their ability to meet their future lease obligations
with the Company.

Scott H. Rechler, who serves as CoChief Executive Officer ond a
director of the Company, serves as Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Frontline. The Company's direc:
tors and officers own approximately 15.9% of Froniline’s outsionding
common stock. Scot H. Rechler olso serves o5 nonexecutive
Chetiman of the Board of HQ.

Results of Operations

The Compony's tolal revenues increased by $30.5 million or
6.0% from 2000 10 2001 and $106.8 million or 26.5% from
1999 1o 2000. Property operating revenues, which include base
rents and tenant escalotions ond reimbursements  ["Property
Operating Revenues’) increased by $45.7 million or 10.1% from
2000 10 2001 and $82.9 million or 22.5% from 1999 to 2000.
The 2001 increase in Property Operating Revenues is primarily
affributable fo increases in reniol rates in our "same slore” proper-
ties amounting to $29.3 million. In addition, $12.4 millicn of the
increase wos generated by the lease up of newly developed and
redeveloped propedies added fo the operaling portfolio.  The
increase in Property Operating Revenues offset the deciease of
$15.2 million in other revenues. This decrease is primarily due to
a decrease of $11.6 million related to interest eamed on advances
made under the Froniline Loans. In addition, $2.3 million of the
decrease is attributable to lower equity in eamings of real estate
joint ventures and service companies.  The 2000 increase in
Property Operafing Revenues is substanticlly attributoble to the
Company's enfrance info the New York City morket. The 1999
and 2000 acquisitions of the five properties comprising the New
York City porffolio represented $48.6 million, or 58.6%, of the
increase in Property Operofing Revenues. Property Operating
Revenues were also positively impocted by opproximately $15.3
million from increases in occuponcies and rental rates in our “same
store” properties, and approximately $9.6 million from the lease up
of newly developed and redeveloped properties added 1o the oper-
ating portfolio. These increases offset the impact of $14.8 million
of Property Operating Revenues that were generated from "Big
Box” industrial properties that were sold in 1999. The remaining
balonce of the increase in total revenues for 2000 is primarily
attributable to an increase in gain on dispositions of real estate of
approximately $11.8 million and an increase of approximately
$8.1 million in other revenue related io interest eamed on advances
made under the Frontline Loans.

The Compony's base rent reflects the positive impact of the
straightdine rent adjustment of $41.6 million in 2001, $38.8 mik
lion in 2000 and $10.7 million in 1999. The 2001 and 2000
straightline ren! adjustment includes $26.9 million and $23.3 mil-

lion, respectively, generated from the property located ot 919 Third
Avenue, New York, NY, which is oftributable to rentol abatement
periods for the three largest tenants.

Property operating expenses, real estate taxes and ground rents
{"Property Expenses’} increased by $11.2 million or 7.1% from
2000 to 2001 and $31.5 million or 25.0% from 1999 to 2000.
The 2001 increase in Property Expenses is primarily due to on
increase of $10.2 million in our "same-store” properties which con-
sists of @ $6.2 million increase in property operating expenses and
a $4.0 million increase in real estate taxes. The increase in Property
Expenses is also aftributable to increases in labor costs, maintenance
contracts and security costs.  In addition, there was an increase in
Property Expenses of $2.7 million due fo higher occupancy levels at
our developed and redeveloped properties. The 2000 increase in
Property Expenses is substantially oftributoble 1o the Company's
entrance into the New York City markel. The 1999 ond 2000
acquisitions of the five properties comprising the New York City port-
folio represented $25.0 million, or 79.4%, of the increose in
Property Expenses. In addition, $6.5 million of the increase is attritr
utable to expense growth in our “same store” properties.

Gross operating margins {defined as Property Operating
Revenues less Property Expenses, token as a percentoge of Properly
Operating Revenues)] for 2001, 2000 and 1999 were 66.1%,
65.2% and 65.9%, respectively. The increase from 2000 to 2001
is primarily due to an increase in rentcl rotes. The slight decrease
from 1999 to 2000 in the gross operating margin percentages
resulted fom a larger proportionate share of gross operating mar-
gin derived from office properties, which has a lower gross margin
percentage. The higher proportionate share of the gross operoling
margin atiributable 1o the office properties was a resull of the acqui-
sition of five properties representing the Company’s entrance into
the New York City market and the disposition of net leased "Big
Box" industrial properties. This shift in the composition of the port-
folio was offset by increases in rental rates and operating efficien-
cies realized as a result of operating a larger portfolio of properties
with concentration of properties in office and industrial parks or in
its established sub-markets.

Marketing, general and odministrative expenses were $30.7
million in 2001, $27.4 nilion in 2000 ond $24.3 million in
1999. The increase in marketing, general and administrative
expenses is primarily due to the increased costs of opening and
maintaining the Company’s New York City division and maintain-
ing offices and infrastructure in each of the Company's markets

including Llong Islond, Westchester, Southern Conneclicut and,

Northern New Jersey and administrative costs associoted with the
growth of the Company. The Company’s business strategy has been
to expand further into the Tri-State Area suburbon and CBD markets
and the New York City market by applying its standards for high
quality office and industrial space and premier tenant service to its
New Jersey, Westchester, Southern Connecticut and New York City
divisions. In doing this, the Company secks to create a superior
franchise volue thot it enjoys in its home base of tong Island. Over
the past three vears the Company has supported this effort by
increasing its marketing programs ond strengthening its resources
and operating systems. The cost of these efforts is reflected in both
marketing, general and administrative expenses as well as the
revenue growth of the Company. To a lesser extent, in 2001, the
increase in marketing, general and administrative casts was impact-
ed by legal and professional fees incurred in connection with cer-
tain cancelled acquisition transactions and amortization of deferred
compensation costs. Morkefing, general and administrative
expense as a percentage of tofal revenues were 5.7% in 2001,
5.4% in 2000 and 6.0% in 1999.

Interest expense was $23.1 million in 2001, $96.3 million in
2000 ond $74.3 million in 1999. The decrease of $3.2 million
from 2000 to 2001 is attributable to lower interest rates and a
decreased average balance on the Company's unsecured credit
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facility. This was portially offset by an increase in the Company’s
morlgage nofes payable which was the result of the refinancing of
the property located at 19 Third Avenve, New York, NY. The

increase of $22.0 million from 1999 to 2000 is primarily aftribut

able to the debt incurred in connection with the acquisition of the
five properties comprising the New York City portfolio. In addition,
the increase was also affributable to o full year of interest on $300
million of senior unsecured notes issued in March 1999, The
weighted average balance outstanding on the Company's unse-
cured credit facility was $282 5 million in 2001, $416.5 million
in 2000 and $423.8 million in 1999,

Included in depreciation and amortization expense is amortized
financing costs of $4.5 million in 2001, $4.1 million in 2000 and
$3.4 million in 1999. The increase of approximately $700,000
from 1999 10 2000 is primorily attributable fo the secured finonc-
ings of the 19 Third Avenue and 1350 Avenue of the Americas
propetfies located in New York, NY.

For the vear ended December 31, 2001, the Company’s con-
solidated statement of operations includes voluation reserve charges
of $166.1 million which is comprised of the following:

(i} Valuation reserve charges, inclusive of anficipated costs, of
$163 million related to the Company’s investments in the Frontline
loans and joint ventures with RSVP {see Overview and Background
for a further discussion of this valuation reserve charge),

{ii) In November 1999, the Company received 176,186 shores
of the common stock of Froniline as fees in connection with the
Froniline Loans. As a result of certain tax rule provisions included in
the REIT Modernization Act, it was determined that the Company
could no longer maintain any equity pesition in Frontline. As part of
a compensation program, the Company distributed these shares to
cerfoin non-executive employees subject to recourse loans. The
loans were scheduled to be forgiven over fime based on continued
employment with the Company. Based on the cumrent value of
Frontling’s common stock the Company has established o valuation
reserve charge relating to the outstanding bolance of these loans in
the amount of $2.4 million and

{iii} Based on the Company’s value assessment of its invesiment in
Captivate Network, Inc., an unielated technology based service
company, the Company recorded o valuation reserve chorge of
approximately $700,000

Extraordinary losses, net of fimited partners' minority interest,
resulted in a $2.6 million loss in 2001, @ $1.4 million loss in 2000
and a $555,000 loss in 1999. The extraordinary losses were all
attributed 1o the writecffs of certain deferred loon costs incurred in
connection with the Company's refinancing of ifs debt.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Summary of Cash Flows

Net cosh provided by operating octivilies totaled $186.0
million in 2001, $169.2 million in 2000 and $153.5 million in
1999. Increases for sach year were primarily ottributable to the
growth in cash flow provided by the acquisition of properties
and/or the increased occupancy levels of the Company's develop-
ment properties and the inciease in renial rates in all of the
Company's markets.

Net cash used in investing aciivities totaled $87.5 million in
2001, $261.3 million in 2000 and $391.8 million in 1999.
Cash used in investing aclivities related primarily fo investments in
real eslate properties including development costs. included in these
investing activities is the Company's investments of approximately
$18.7 million, $16.3 million and $14.7 million in RSYPcontrolled
[REIT Quolified) joint ventures in each of the years then ended. In
addifion, during 1999, the Company invested approximately
$277.5 million for the acquisition of the first mortgage note secur-
ing the property located of 919 Third Avenue, New York, NY.
Cosh used in investing activities was offsel by proceeds from the
redemption of the Company’s preferred equily investments in
Keystone Property Trust in 2001 and 2000 as well as from sales of

real estate, securities and morigage note receivable repayments in
each of the years then ended.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $5.7 million in
2001, $88.6 million in 2000 and $257.4 million in 1999. Cash
provided by financing activities related primarily to proceeds from
secured debt financings, minority partner contributions ond edvances
under the Company’s unsecured credit facility and term loon in each
of the years then ended. Cash provided by financing activities in
1999 was also provided by the issuance of the Company's Series B
preferred stock and senior unsecured notes. Cash provided by financ:
ing activifies was offset by advances made under the Frontline Loans
of opproximately $7.2 million, $13.6 million and $81.0 million in
each of the years then ended. Cash provided by financing activities
was also offset by principal payments on secured borrowings, the
unsecured credit focility and term loan as well as loon equity issuance
costs and dividends ond distributions.

Investing Activities

On October 29, 2001, the Company, at its option, acquired the
lessor's rights to the air rights lease agreement for the property locat-
ed at 120 West 45th Sireet, New York, NY for approximotely
$7.7 million As a result, the Company's obligation to pay rent under
this lease agreement was eliminated.

On December 21, 2001, Metropolitan sold o 49% indirect
interest in the property located ot @19 Third Avenue, New York, NY
for $220.5 million which included $122.1 million of its propor-
lionote share of secured mortgoge debt and approximately $08.4
million of cash. As a resull, the Company reclized a gain of approx-
imately $18.9 million.

During the yeor ended December 31, 2001, the Company sold
five office properties aggregating approximately 678,000 square
feet for $82.1 million, 0 26,000 square foot industiol property for
$2.8 million and its remaining preferred inferest in Keystone Property
Trust for $35.7 million. As a result of these soles the Company reat
ized a net gain of opproximately $1.3 million. Net proceeds from
these sales were used primarily to repay borrowings under the
Company’s unsecured credit facility and to establish an escrow
account with a qualified intermediary for o future exchange of real
property pursuant to Section 1031 of the Intemnal Revenue Code of
1986. The Company has identified approximately 52.7 ocres of
lond focated in Valhalla, NY for the purposes of this exchange.

Subsequent fo December 31, 2001, the Company entered into
a contioct to sell two Closs A office properties, located in
Wesichester County, NY, aggregating approximately 157,000
squore feet for approximately $18.5 million. The closing is sched-
uled to occur during the second quarter of 2002,

The following table sets forth the Company’s invested capital {before
valuation reserves) in RSVP controlled [RETqualified) joint ventures and
amounts which were advonced under the RSVP Commitmant to
Froniline, for its investment in RSVP controlled investments {in thousands|:

RSVP controlled ~ Amounts
joint ventures  cdvanced Total

Privatizotion $ 21,480 $ 3,520 § 25000
Student Housing 18,086 3,935 22,021
Medical Cffices 20,185 - — 20,185
Parking — 9,091 2,091
Resorts — 8,057 8,057
Net leased retail — 3,180 3,180
COther Assests
and overhead — 21,598 21,598
$ 59,751 $ 49,381 $ 109132

Included in these investments is approximaiely $18.9 million of
cash that hos been contributed 1o the respective RSVP controlled
joint venlures or advanced under the RSVP Commitment to Frontline
and is being held, along with cash from the preferred investors.



Reckson Associates Realty Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Findncial Condition and Results of Operations (continved)

Financing Activities

During 2001, the Company paid cash dividends on its Class A
common stock of opproximately $1.62 per share and approxi-
mately $2.50 per share on its-Class B common stock.

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized the pur-
chase of up to an additional five million shares of the Company's
Closs B common stock and/or its Class A common stock.
Transoctions conducted on the New York Stock Exchange will be
effected in occordance with the sofe harbor provisions of the
Securifies Exchange Act of 1934 afd may be terminated by the
Company of any time. Previously, the Company purchased and
refired 1,410,804 shores of Class B common stock of an average
price of $21.48 per Class B share and 61,704 shares of Class A
comman stock af an average price of $23.03 per Class A share
for an aggregate purchase price of opproximately $31.7 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, approximately
11,553 prelerred units of limited partnership interest in the
Operoting Parinership, with a liquidation preference value of
approximaltely $11.6 million, were exchanged for 456,351 OP
Unils ot an overage price of $25.32 per OP Unit. In addition,
660,370 OF Units were exchanged for an equal number of shares
of the Company's Class A common stock.

Metropolitan is controlied by the Company. A minority partner
owned an $85 million preferred equity investment in Mefropolitan
which accrued distibutions at a rate of 7.5% per annum for a two-
year pericd [May 24, 1999 thiough May 30, 2001]. On May
31, 2001, the minority parner, at its election, converted its pre-
ferred equily investment into 3,453,881 shares of the Company’s
Class A common stock based on a conversion price of $24.61 per
share. As a result of the minorily partner's conversion of its preferred
equity invesiment, the Company owns 100%  of Metropolilan.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had o three year
$575 million unsecured revolving credit facility ({the "Credit
Facility") from JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrotive agent, UBS
Waorburg ULC as syndication agent ond Deutsche Bonk os docu-
mentation agent. The Credit Facility motures in September 2003
and boriowings under the Credit Facility are currently priced off
LUBOR plus 1035 bosis points.

The Company ulilizes the Credit Focilily primarily fo finance
real estate investments, fund ils real estate development activities
ond for working capitol purposes. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had availability under the Credit Facility to borrow an
additional $303.4 million {of.which, $37.4 million has been allo-
coted for outstanding undrawn letters of credit|. Subsequent to
December 31, 2001, the Company paid down the Credit Facility
by $84.6 million which was received from the sale of @ 49% inter-

est in the property located at 219 Third Avenue, New York, NY

_and thereby increasing its availability under the Credit Facility to

$388 million.

On June 1, 2001, the Company refinanced a $70 million short
ferm variable rate mortgage note with a five year $75 million fixed
rate mortgage nofe, which bears interest ot 6.52% per annum. In
addition, on July 18, 2001, the Company refinanced a $200
million short term variable rate mortgage note with a ten year $250
miflion fixed rate mortgoge note, which bears interest at 6.867%
per annum. The net proceeds of approximately $50.4 million
received by the Company as a result of these refinancings was used
to repay maturing fixed rate debt, the Credit Facility and for work-
ing capital purposes.

On Wly 24, 2001, the Company repaid o morgage note in
the amount of approximately $15.5 million from a portion of the
proceeds received from the secured debt financing of the property
located at 919 Third Avenuve, New York, NY. In addition, during
the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company repoid two mortgage
nofes in the aggregale amount of approximately $8.8 million
through o draw under the Credit Facility and from availeble cash
on hand.

Capitalization

The Company’s indebtedness at December 31, 2001 totoled
approximately $1.3 billion {including its share of joint venture
debt and net of minority partners’ interests share of joint venture
debl) and was comprised of $271.6 million outstonding under
the Credit Facility, approximately $449.5 million of senior unse-
cured notes and opproximately $614.9 million of mortgoge indebt-
edness with o weighted average interest rate of cpproximately
7.4% ond a weighted average moturity of approximately 10.1
years. Based on the Company's total market capitalization of
approximately $3.3 billion at December 31, 2001 icaleulated
based on the sum of (i} the market value of the Company's Class A
common stock and OP Units, assuming conversion, [ii} the market
value of the Company’s Class B common stock, {iii] the liquidation
preference value of the Company’s preferred stock, (i} the liquida-
fion preference value of the Opercting Partnership’s preferred units
ond {v) the $1.3 billion of debt), the Company's debt represented
approximately 41.1% of its total market capilolization. At
December 31, 2001, the Compony had opproximately $122
million of cash and cash equivalents on hand of which approxi-
mately $98.4 million was generated from the sale of o 49%
interest in one of its major CBD assets. On January 4, 2002, the
Company repaid approximately $85 million of its shortterm debt
from its cash and cash equivalenis on hand.
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_Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Resvits of Operations (conhnued)

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following fable sets forth the Companys significant debt obligations by scheduled principal cash flow payments and maturity date
and its commescial commitments by scheduled maturity at December 31, 2001 (in thousands):

. Maturity Date

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Therecfter Total

Martgage noles payable (1) $11,356 $12,559 $13,493 $14,462 $14,097  $130,347 $196,314
Moarigage noles payable 12) - — 2,616 18,553 129,920 403,674 554,763
Senior unsecured notes — — 100,000 — — 350,000 450,000
Unsecured credit facility ' — 271,600 — — — — 271,600
land lease obligations 2,688 2,687 2,811 2,814 2,795 49,921 63,716
Air rights lease obligations 366 369 379 379 379 4,658 6,530
$14.410  $287,215  $119,209 $36,208 $147,191 $938,600 $1,542,923

{1) Scheduled principal amortization payments
{2) Principal payments due af maturity

Certain of the morigage notes payable are guaronteed by
certain limited pariners in the Operating Parinership and/or the
Company. In addition, consistent with customary practices in non-
recourse lending, cerlain nonrecourse morlagages may be recourse 1o
the Company under certain limited circumstances including envisonr
mental issues ond breaches of material representations.

In oddition, ot December 31, 2001, the Company had approx-
imately $24.3 million ond $13.1 million in outstanding undrawn
standby letiers of credit issued under the Credit Facility which expire
in 2002 and 2003, respectively.

The Company is also obligated 1o purchase, for approximately
$23.8 million, 52.7 acres of lond locoted in Volhallo, NY on
which the Company can develop approximately 875,000 square
feet of office space. This acquisition will be financed in part from
the sale proceeds of an office property currenily being held by o
quolified intermediary for the purposes of an exchange of real propr
erty pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 and is scheduled to close during the first quarter of 2002,

Thitteen of the Company's office properties and two of the
Company's industrial properties which were acquired by the
issuance of OP Units are subject to agreements limiting the
Company's ability to transfer them prior to agreed upon dates with-
out the consent of the fimited partner who transferred the respective
property to the Company. In the event the Company transfers any
of these properties prior to the expirafion of these limitations, the
Company may be required 1o make o payment relafing to toxes
incurred by the limited pariner. The limilations on nine of the prop-
erligs expire prior 1o June 30, 2003. The limitations on the remain-
ing properiies expire between 2007 ond 2013.

Eleven of the Company's office properties are held in joint ven-
tures which contain certain limitotions on transfer. These limitations
include requiring the consent of the joint venture partner to transfer
a properly prior fo various, specified dates ranging from 2003 to
2005, rights of first offer, and buy/sell provisions.

Historically, rental revenue has been the principal source of funds
to pay operaling expenses, debt service and capital expenditures,
excluding nonrecurring capital expenditures of the Compony. The
Compony expects to meet its shorterm liquidity requirements gen-
erally through its net cash provided by operating activities along
with the Credit Facility previously discussed. The Credit Focility con-
tains several financial covenants with which the Company must be
in compliance in order to borrow funds thereunder, The Company
expecis lo meet cerfain of its financing requirements through long-
term secured and unsecured boriowings and the issuance of debt
and equily secuiities of the Compony. In addition, the Company
also believes that it will, from time to time, generate funds from the

disposition of certain of its real esfate properties or interests therein.
The Company will refinance exising morigage indebtedness or
indebtedness under the Credit Facility at maturity or refire such debt
through the issuance of additional debt securities or additional equi-
ty securities. The Company anticipates that the current balance of
cash and cash equivalents and cash flows from operating activilies,
together with cash available from borrowings and equity offerings,
will be adequate to meet the capital and fiquidity requirements of
the Company in both the short and longterm.

As a result of current economic conditions, certain companies
who make up our tenant base have either not renewed their leases
upon expiralion of have poid the Compony o ferminote their leos-
es. In addition, vacancy rates in our markets have been trending
higher and in some instances our asking rents in our markets have
been frending lower. Additionally, due to the events of September
1 Tth, the Company onticipates higher operating expenses as they
relate 1o certain insurance coverage and security measures.

In order to qualify as a REIT for federal income tox purposes, the
Company is required to make distributions 1o its stockholders of at
least 90% of REIT taxable income. The Company expects fo use its
cash flow from operating activities for distributions fo stockholders
and for payment of recurring, nonincremental revenue-generating
expenditures. The Company infends to invest amounts accumulated
for distribution in shortterm investments.

On October 16, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors
announced that it adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan {the "Rights
Plan"] designed lo protect shareholders from verious abusive
takeover toctics, including attempts to acquire control of the
Company af an inadequate price, depriving shareholders of the full
value of their investment, A description of the Rights Plan is includ-
ed in the Notes fo Financial Statements of the Company.

Inflation

The office leases generally provide for fixed base rent increases
or indexed escalations. In addition, the office leases provide for
separate escalations of real estate taxes, operating expenses and
electric costs over a base amount. The industrial leases generally
provide for fixed base rent increases, direct poss through of certoin
operating expenses and separate real estate tax escalations over o
base amouni. The Company believes that inflationary increases in
expenses will be offset by confractual rent increases and expense
escalations described above.

The Credit Facility beairs interest ot o variable rate, which will be
influenced by changes in shortterm interest rates, and is sensitive
to inflation,



Reckson Associates Realty Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations (continved)

Funds From Operations

Management believes that funds from operations ('FFO") is an
appropriate measure of performance of an equity REIT. FFO is
defined by the Natienal Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
"NAREIT"} as net income or loss, excluding gains or losses from
debt restructuring and sales of properties plus depreciation and
amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partrerships
and joint ventures, FFO does nol represent cash generated from
operating aclivities in accordance with GAAP and is not indicative
of cash available to fund cash needs. FFO should not be consid-

ered as on allernative to net income as on indicator of the
Company's operating performance or as an aliemative to cash flow
as a measure of liquidity. (See Selected Financial Data). FFO for the
year ended December 31, 2001 excludes $163 million of voluo-
tion reserves on investments in offiliate loans and joint ventures.

Since all companies and analysts do not caleulate FFO in a sim-
ilar foshion, the Company’s calculation of FFO presented herein
may not be comparable to similady tiled measures as reported by
other companies.

The following table presents the Company's FFO calculation for the years ended December 31 {in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Income before minority interests, preferred dividends and

distributions, valuation reserves and extraordinary loss ... $145,054 $ 136,227 $ 104,042
less:

Minorily pariners’ interests in consolidated partnerships..................ccocee.e 15,975 9,120 6,802

Limited poriners’ minority interest in the operoting parinership.... .. {5,727) 11,669 9,407

Preferred dividends and distributions ... 23,977 28,012 27 001

Valuation reserves on investments in offiliate loans and joint

ventures and other INVeSIMENS. ... .....ooo i 166,101 — —
Extraordinary loss, net of limited partners’ minority interest in '
the operating partnership of $303, $175 and $74 respectively ... 2,595 1,396 555
Net income {loss) allocable to common shareholders ..., (57,867) 86,030 60,277
Adjustments for basic Funds From Operations
Add:

Limited pariners’ minority interest in the operating partrership................... —_ 11,669 2,407

Reat esiate depreciation and amortization .. 100,967 90,552 72,124

Minority pariners’ interests in consolidated partnerships................ccccoen. 15,975 %120 6,802

Valuation reserves on investments in offiliate loans and joint ventures........... 163,000 — —

Extraordinary loss, net of limited pariners” minority inferest in the

operoting partnership of $303, $175 and $74, respectively .............. 2,595 1,396 555
less:

Limited pariners’ minorily interest in the operating partnership.................... 5,727 — —

Gain on sales of real estate .. 20,173 18,669 10,052

Amounts distributable to minority partners in consolidated partnerships ... 19,083 12,316 8,293
Basic Funds From Operalions..........coooiiieioieiie e 179,687 167,782 130,820
Add:

Dividends and distributions on dilutive shares and units.............c.ccoein, 26,601 34,387 30,861
Diluted Funds From Operafion ... $206,288 $ 202,169 $ 161,681
Weighted Average Shares/OP Units outstanding ()., 66,057 61,050 54,719
Diluted Weighted Average Shares/OP Units outstanding 111 ..o, 79,027 78119 70,013

{1} Assumes conversion of limited partnership units of the Operating Parmership.

.
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Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary market risk facing the Company is interest rate risk
on its long term debt, morlgage notes and notes receivable. The
Company will, when advantogeous, hedge ifs interest rafe risk
using finoncial instuments. The Company is not subject to foreign
currency risk. :

The Company manages ifs exposure o inferest rate risk on its
varioble rate indebledness by borrowing on a shortterm basis
under its Credit Facility until such time as it is able to refire the short-
ferm variable rafe debt with effher o longterm fixed rate debt offer
ing, long term morigage debt, equity offerings or through soles or
portial sales of assefs.

The Company will recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet

at foir value. Derivatives that are not hedges will be adjusted o fair
value through income. If a derivative is o hedge, depending on the
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative will
either be offset against the change in foir value of the hedged asset,
liability or firm commitment through earnings, or recognized in other
comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earn-
ings. The ineffective portion of a derivalive's change in fair value
will be immediately recognized in earnings.

The faic market value ["FAV") of the Company's long term debt,
mortgage notes and notes receivable is estimated bosed on dis
counting fulure cash flows ol interest rates that management
believes reflects the risks associated with long term debt, morigage
notes and notes receivable of similar risk and duration.

The following toble sets forth the Company’s long term debt obligations by scheduled principal cash flow payments and maturity dote,
weighted overage interest rates and estimated FMV at December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousonds):

For the Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Therecher Total)1y FMV
long term debr: )
Fixed rale.................. $11.356 § 12,559 $ 116,109 § 33,015 $144,017 § 884,021 $1,201,077 $ 1221125
Weighted average
interest rale ... . 7.52% 7.50% 7.47% 6.92% 7.38% 7.34% 7.35%
Variable rate ..., $ — $271,600 § - 3 — % — 3 —.$ 271,600 $ 271,600
Weighted average
inferest rate ............ —% 3.593% —% —% —% —% 3.53%

{1) Includes unomortized issuance discounts of $537 on the 5 and 10vear senior unsecured notes issued on March 26, 1999 which are due of maturity.

In addition, the Company has assessed the market risk for its vari-
able rate debt, which is bosed upon UBOR, and believes that a one
percent increcse in the LIBOR rofe would hove on opproximale

$2.7 million annual increase in interest expense bosed on approx-
imately $271.6 million of varioble rafe debt outsianding of
December 31, 2001,

The following table sets forth the Company's mortgage notes and notes receivoble by scheduled maturity date, weighted average
interest rates and estimated FAMV af December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total 21 FMV
Morigage notes ond
notes receivable:
Fixed rale ..ol $1165 §  — $36500 § — 3 — $ 16990 $ 54,655 $55939
Weighted average
inferest fate. ..o G.00% —%  10.23% —% —% 11.88% 10.72%

12) Excludes interest receivables ‘aggregating approximately $1,579.



Reckson Associcies Realty Corp.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
{in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,

2001 2000
Assets . .
Commercial real estale properties, at cost: (Notes 2, 3, 5 ond 6]
LaN e 408,837 $ 396,482
Buildings and improvements 2,328,374 2,219,448
Developments in progress:
LORG e 69,365 60,918
Development costs .................... Y e 74,303 93,759
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment ...........oiovvieo e 7,725 7,138
2,888,604 2777745
Less accumuloted depreciGlion ... e (361,960) 288,479)
2,526,644 2,489,266
Invesiments in real estale joint VEMIUTES ..ot 5,744 5,348
Investment in mortgage notes and noles receivable (Note 6 ...........ocoooiiioiiie 56,234 58,220
Cash and cash equivalents o @) 121,975 17,843
Tenant receivables ... 9,633 11,511
Investments in service componies ond affiliate loans and joint ventures (Note 81..........cccooeis 79,184 215,660
Deferred rents receivable . ... . 81,089 67,930
Prepaid expenses ond other assets ... 45,495 68,895
Contract and lond deposits and pre-acquisition costs 3,782 1,676
Deferred leasing and loan costs, less accumulated amortization of $41,411 and
$32,773, t@SPOCHVEN oo i it 64,438 61,681
TOtO] A SO oottt b eeee s 2,994,218 $2 998 030
Liabilities
Morigage notes PayaBIE [Nole 20 «.......cv.viviueeeies oo ot 751,077 $ 728971
Unsecured credit facility (Note 3].........ovoiiiioi e e 271,600 216,600
Senior unsecured notes iNoe ) ........... 449,463 449,385
Acciued expenses and other liabilities . 87,683 $5,393
Dividends and distributions payable ... 32,988 28,801
Total Liebilifies ... oo 1,592,811 1,519,150
Minarity partners’ interests in consolidated partnerships. ... 242,698 226,330
Preferred unit interest in the operating partnership 30,965 42,518
Limited pariners’ minority interest in the operating partnership ... 81,887 07,353
355,550 366,221
Commitments and contingencies (Notes ©.10:and 13).........eourieis it - -
Stockholders’ Equity inore 7)
Preferred Stock, $.01 par volue, 25,000,000 shares authorized
Series A preferred stock, 9,192,000 shares issued and outstanding ... 92 Q2
Series B preferred slock, 2,000,000 shares issued and outstanding ......oooeivrieiena 20 20
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized
Class A common stock, 49,982,377 and 45,352,286 shares issued and
QUISIONGING, TESPECHVEIY ...\ 1ottt 500 454
Class B common stock, 10,283,513 shares issved and outstanding . 103 103
Additional paid in capital ............ e 1,045,142 1,111,990
Total Stockholders’ EQUity ..............ccocoiiii i 1,045,857 1,112,659
Total Liabiliies and Stockholders” Equity .......ocooooiivieii e 2,994,218 $2,998,030

{see accompanying notes lo financiol statements|
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Reckson Associates Realty Corp

--Consolidated Statements of ©perations

(in thousands, except share amounts/

For the year ended December 31

2001 2000 1999

Revenves Note 10)
Base Rents..>. oo et e $ 437,802 $ 397,327 $ 324,146
Tenant escalations and reimbursemMEnts ..........oocoiii o : 59,969 54,750 44,989
Equity in earnings of real esfate joint ventures and service companies 2,087 4,383 2,148
Interest income on mortgoge notes and notes receivable ... 6,238 8,212 7,044
Gain on soles of real estate [Nole 6] ..oooer oot 20,173 18,669 10,052
Investment and other INCOME p..... oo oo 14,199 26,507 13,874
Total REVENUES ..o 540,468 509,938 403,153
Expenses:
Property operating 8XPENSES ... ...ieoi i . 168,664 157,456 125,994
Marketing, general and adminisirative .. ‘30,747 27,371 24,293
FIETESE oo . 93,072 96,337 74,320
Depreciation and amorizelon ... 102,931 92,547 74,504
TOIol EXPONSES ..ot e 395,414 373,711 290,111
Income before minority interests, preferred dividends ond

disiributions, valuation reserves and extraordinory Joss..............oo.... 145,054 136,227 104,042
Minority partners' interests in consolidated portnerships ... (15,975) (9,120} {6,802)
limited partners’ minority interest in the operofing partnership . ) 5,727 (11,669) (9,407)
Distributions to preferred unit holders ... (2,111) {2,641) 12,641}
Voluation reserves on investments in affiliate Toans and joint

ventures and other investments (Notes 8 ond 13) ...oovvvveeeeei e (166,101) — —
Income {loss} before exiraordinary loss and dividends to preferred

shareholders...... (33,406) 112,707 85,192
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debts, net of limited partners’

minority interest share of $303, $175 and $74, respectively.............. (2,595) (1,39¢) 555]_
Net Income (ossh . oo e (36,001) 111,401 84,637
Dividends to preferred shareholders ..o {21,866) (25,371) (24,360}
Net income {loss) allocable to common sharcholders e $ (57,867) $ 86030 $ 60277
Net income {loss) allocable to:

Class A common shareholders. ... $ (44,243) $ 62,989 $ 47,529

Class B common shareholders (13,624) 23,041 12,748
Totol $ (57,867) $ 86030 $ 60,277
Basic net income {lass) per weighted average common share:

Class A COMMON ....iii e $ (.88) $ 1.49 $ 1.19

Extraordinary loss per Closs A common ..o (.04) {.03) O

Basic net income {loss) per Class A common ... $ {.92) $ 1.46 $ 1.18

Class B COMMON. ... $  (1.26) $ 2.28 $ 1.91

Extraordinary foss per Closs B common ... {.06) (.04} .02

Basic net income (loss) per Class B common ..o $ (1.32) $ 2.24 $ 1.89
Bosic weighted average common shares outstanding: :

Class A COMMON ..oiiiiii e 48,121,000 43,070,000 40,270,000

Class B COMMON. ...t 10,284,000 10,284,000 6,744,000
Diluted net income [loss) per weighted average common share:

Class A COMMON ..ot $ {.92} $ _1.45 $

Class B COMMON..... 1o $  (1.32) $ 1.59 $
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding:

Class A COMMON ... 48,121,000 43,545 000 40,676,000

Class B ComMMON. .o e e 10,284,000 10,284,000 6,744,000

{see accompanying notes to financial statements)



Reckson Associates Realty Corp.,

- Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
- {in thousands) .

: v timited
. Closs A ClassB Series A Series B Additional Total Partners’
. . Common Common  Preferred  Preferred Paid in Retained Stockholders’ Minority
o . . Stock Stock Stock Stock Copital Earnings Equity Inferest
Stockholders” equity
Janvary 1, 1999 .l $400 ¢ — $ 92 3 — $705572 % — $ 706,064 $ 94,125
i Net proceeds from preferred
| stock offering ..o..v.oveevreerer - = — 60 149,940 — 150,000 —
: Net proceeds from
Class B common stock offering o~z — — 302,536 — 302,653 —
Repurchases of
Class B common stock .............. — 114) — — (30,273) — 130,287) —
Redemption of OP Units ............... — — — — — — — {1,485)
Net proceeds from long lerm
compensalion issuances ............ 4 — — — 1,593 — 1,597 —
Net income ... — = — — — 60,277 60,277 @333
Dividends ond distributions
paid and payable................... — — — — 13,071} {60,277) [73,348) (10,987)
Stockholders” equity
December 31, 1999 .. ... 404 103 Q2 60 1,116,297 — 1,116,056 90,986
. Conversion of Series B
) Preferred Stock oo 42 — — [40) {6,765} - (6,763) 6,763
k Redemption of OP Units ................ — — — — — — — {125]
Net proceeds from long term
compensation issuances ............ 8 — — — 6,656 —, 6,664 —
Netincome ... — — — — — 86,030 86,030 11,494
Dividends and distributions
paid and payable.................... — — — —_ {4,198) (86,030) (90,228} 11,765}
Stockholders' equity
December 31, 2000 ... e 454 103 Q2 20 1.111,990 — 1,112,659 97,353
Issuance of OP Units — — — — — — — 11,557
Redemption of OP Units ................ 6 — — — 15,412 — 15418 {15,577
Net proceeds from long term :
compensalion isSUances ............ 5 — — — 6,423 — 6,428 —
Issvorce of .
Class A common stock .............. 35 — — — 77777 — 77,812 7,188
Repurchases of
‘ Class A common stock .............. — — - — (1,421) — (1,421) —
: Netdoss ..o — — — — — 157,867} [57,867) (6,030)
Dividends and distributions
paid and poyable ... — — — — 165,039} 57 867 1107,172) (12,604)
Stockholders’ equity
December 31, 2001 . ... . $500 $ 103 $ 92 $ 20 $1,045,182 § —_ $1,045,857 § 81,887

[see accompanying notes fo financiol stalements)
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Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows
"~{in thousands) . i

For the year ended December 31,

. . 2001 2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income (l0SS]..... .o e $(36,001) $ 111,401 $ 84,637
Adjustments to reconcile net income [loss] to net cash provided
by operofing aciivilies:
Depreciation and amomization ...............ovcieiierei e 102,931 92,547 74,504
Extraardinary loss, net of minority inferests ..o 2,595 1,396 555
Minority poriners’ inferests in consolidated partnerships .......... .. 15975 9,120 6,802
Limited pariners’ minority interest in the operating parinership {5,727} 11,669 3,407
Gain on soles of real estate, securities ond mortgage repayment ... (20,173) {18,669) 9,657}
Valuation reserves on invesiments in affiliate loans and joint
ventures and ofher INVeSIMENts ... oo o e 166,101 — —
{2,087) 14,383) 12,148}
.. (38,186) 135.798) (2,158
Prepaid expenses and other assets ... ....co.iooiiiiiie (4,925) 12,582) 124,414)
Tenant and offificle receivables ... 1,878 16,394) 4?2
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . 3,607 17,857 15888
Net cash provided by operating activifies 185,988 169,164 153,458
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of commercial rea! estate properties ... — (190,548) {284,741}
Invesiment in morigage nofes and noles receivable ... —_ — (295,048)
Increase in contract deposits and pre-acquisition costs (3,267) 12,023 (12,650}
Additions to developments in progress ................ . .. (8,260) 113,392} 9,615}
Addifions 1o commercial real eslale properties ...... ..{152,074) {89,818) (28,135)
Payment of leasing Costs..........vooriie . (10,513) (24,082] (16,467)
Distribufions from invesiments in real estate joint ventures .. . 82 368 442
Additions 1o fumiture, fixtures and equipment ... {635) 742} [461)
“Investments in affiliate joint ventures ... (25,056) (10,780) {15,033)
Proceeds from redemption of Keystone Property
Trust preferred securifies ..., 35,700 19,903 —
Proceeds fiom sales of real estate, securities and morigage
note receivable repayMents ... .. oo 76,503 49810 269,916
Net cash used in investing OCHVIlIES ..o (87,520) (261,304) {391,792)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from secured BOMOWINGS ....ooi it 325,000 297,163 125,548
Principal payments on secured borrowings..... (302, 894) (27,367] (4,714]
Proceeds from issuance of senior unsecured notes, net of issuance costs ... - — 209,262
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance cosfs .............. - — 148,000
Payment of loon and equity issuance COSts.. ..o {6,252) (11,649) 18,264)
Investments in offiliate loans ond service companies ... (12,388) {12,.5168) {125,007}
Proceeds from unsecured credit facifity and term loan ............ ... 153,000 689,600 397,500
Principal payments on unsecured credit facility and term foan ... (98,000) {845,600} (510,750}
Repurchases of Class B common stock ..o - — 130,287)
Repurchases of Class A common stock ... (1,42Y) — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and exercise
of options, net of ISSUGNCE COSIS -......o..oi oo e 2,813 4010 1,512
Contributions by minority partners in consolidated parfnerships ..., 101,832 135,975 75,500
Distributions o minority poriners in consolidoted porinerships.... . {16,458) (12,632) [6,701)
Distributions to limited partners in the operating parinership...................... (12,395) {11,654} 11,177)
Distributions to preferred unit holders ... (2,231) 12,641) (2,641)
Dividends to common shareholders...... ..(103,118) (87,437) {68,031)
Dividends 1o preferred shareholders .. . (21,824) {26,637] {22,397
Nei cash provided by financing aclivities................ 5,664 88,615 257,353
Net increase {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents . 104,132 13,525) 19,019
Cash and cosh equivalents of beginning of period ... ... 17,843 21,368 2,349
Cash and cosh equivalents at end of period ... $121,975 -$17.843 $21,368
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash poid during the period for interest, including
interest Capialized ... $105,087 $106,106 $77.014

{see accompanying nofes fo financial statements}



Reckson Associates Realty Corp.

Nofes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2001 .

1.Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Reckson Associotes Really Corp. (the "Compony’) is a selfadmin-
islered and self managed real estate invesiment trust (“REIT")
engoged in the ownership, management, operation, leasing and
development of commercial real estate properties, principally office
and industrial buildings and also owns land for future development
[collectively, the "Properties'} located in the New York trisiate area
[the “Tri-State Area”). )
Organization and Formation of the Company

The Company was incorporated in Maryland in September
1994, In june 19935, the Company completed an Initial Public
Offering [the "IPO") and commenced operations.

The Company became the sole general parner of Reckson
Operating Partnership, LP. (the "Operating Portnership’l by con-
tribuling substantially all of the net proceeds of the IPO, in exchange
for an opproximate 73% interest in the Operating Partnership. All
Properties acquired by the Company are held by or through the
Operating Parinership. In conjunction with the IPO, the Operaling
Partnership executed various opfion and purchase agreements
whereby it issued common units of limited portnership interest in the
Operating Parinership {"OP Units') to certain continuing invesfors in
exchange for (i] interests in cerlain property parinerships, |ii} fee sim-
ple ond leasehold interests in properties and development land, {iii)
certain business assels of executive center entities and {iv) 100% of
the nonwoling preferred stock of the management and construction
companies. At December 31, 2001, the Compony’s ownership
percentage in the Operating Partnership is approximately 88.9%.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
consolidated financial position of the Company and the Operating
Pasinership at December 31, 2001 ond 2000 and the results of
their operations and their cosh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. The Operoting
Parinership’s investments in majority owned and/or controlled real
estate joint ventures are reflected in the accompanying financial
statements on a consolidated basis with a reduction for the minori-
ty poriners” interest. The operating results of the service companies
currently conducted by Reckson Management Group, Inc., RANY
Management Group, Inc. ond Reckson Construction Group, Inc.
["RCG") in which the Operating Pariership owns a non-controlling
interest are reflected in the accompanying financial statements on
the equity method of accounting. The Operating Parinership also
invests in reol estate joint ventures where it may own less than a con-
irolfing interest.  Such invesiments are also reflected in the accom-
ponying financial statements on the equity method of accounting.
Al significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in the consolidated: financial statements.

The minorly inferests of December 31, 2001 represent on
approximate 11.1% limited partnership minority inferest in the
Operating Parinership, o 49% interest in RT TriState LLC, owner
of an eight property suburban office porffolio, @ 40% interest in
Omni Parners, LP., owner of a 575,000 squore foot suburban
office property and a 49% interest in Metropoliton 919 Third
Avenue, LC, owner of the properly located at 919 Third Avenue,
New York, NY.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States ["GAAP’}
requires managemert to moke esfimates ond assumptions thot affect the

amounts reported in the financial statements ond accomponying
notes. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Real Estate

Depreciation is computed ulilizing the straightline method over
the estimated useful lives of ten to thirty years for buildings and
improvements and five to ten yeors for furniture, fixtures and equip-
ment. Tenant improvements, which are included in buildings and
improvements, are amortized on o straightine basis over the term
of the related leases.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers highly liquid investments with @ maturity
of three months o less when purchosed, to be cash equivalents.
Tenant's lease security deposits oggregating approximately $5.1
million ond $6.1 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively have been included in cash and cosh equivalents on
the accompanying balance sheets.

Deferred Costs

Tenant leasing commissions and related costs incuried in con-
nection with lesing tenant space are copitalized and omortized
over the life of ihe related lease. In addition, loan costs incurred in
obraining financing are capitalized and omortized over the term of
the reloted loan.

Costs incurred in connection with equity offerings are charged to
stockholders equity when incurred.

Income Taxes

Commencing with its taxable year ended December 31, 1995,
the Company elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986. To quolify as a REIT, the Company must
meet o number of organizational and operational requirements,
including o requirement that it currently distribute of least 90% of its
adjusted toxable income to its stockholders. It is management's cur-
rent intention lo adhere to these requirements and maintain the
Company's REIT status. As a REIT, the Compony generally will not
be subject fo corporate level federal income tox on taxable income
it distributes currently to ifs stockholders. I the Company fails to
qualify as a REIT in any toxable year, it will be subject to federal
income faxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to qudlify as ¢ REIT
for the subsequent four taxable years. Even if the Company quali-
fies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be subject 1o certain
state and local toxes on its income and property, and to federol
income and excise taxes on ifs undistributed toxable income.  In
addition, taxable income from nonREIT activities managed through
laxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federol, siote and local
income taxes. (See Note 14 for the Company’s reconciliation of
GAAP net income fo taxable income, ils recanciliction of cash
distributions to the dividends poid deduction and its characteriza-
fion of toxable distributions).

Revenvue Recognition

Minimum rental income is recognized on a straightine basis over
the term of a lease. The excess of rents recognized over amounts
contractually due are included in deferred rents receivable on the
accompanying balance sheets. Contractually due but unpaid rents
are included in tenant receivables on the accompenying balonce
sheets. Cerlain lease agreements provide, for reimbursement of reol
eslate taxes, insurance, .common area maintenance costs ond
indexed rental increases, which are recorded on an accrual basis.

The Company records inferes! income on investments in morl-
goge nofes and nofes receivable on an accrual bosis of account-
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ing. The Company does not accrue interest on impaired loans
where, in the judgment of management, collection of interest
according fo the contraciual terms is considered doubtful. Among
the factors t& Company considers in making an evaluation of the
collectibility of interest are: (i} the status of the loan, (i} the value of
the underlying collateral, {iii) the financial condition of the borrower
and {iv} anficipated future events.

Gain on sales of real estate are recorded when fitle is conveyed
o the buyer, subject to the buyer's financial commitment being suf
ficient 1o provide economic substance 1o the sale.

Earnings Per Share
In 1997, the Financial Accouniing Standards Boord ("FASB")
issued Statement No. 128, “Earnings per Share” {"Statement 128")
which replaced the caleulation of primary and fully diluted eamings
per share with basic and diluted eamings per share. Unlike primary
“earnings per shore, basic earnings per share excludes any dilutive
effects of options, warranis and convertible securities. Diluted earm-
ings per share is very similor to the previously reported  fully diluted
esamings per share. Al eamnings per share amounts for all periods
have been presented. The conversion of OP Units into Class A com-
mon stock would not have a significant effect on per share amounts
as the OP Units share proportionately with the Class A common stock
in the results of the Operating Partnership’s operations.

Stock Options

The Company hos elected to follow Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock tssued 1o Employees”
["APB 25"} and related interpretations in accounting for its employ-
ee stock options because, the alternative fair volue accounting pro-
vided for under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” ("Statement 123") requires use of option val-
uation models that were not developed for use in valuing employ-
ee slock oplions. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is rec:
ognized upon the granting of stock options when the exercise price
of the Company's employee slock options equals the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company provides
additional pro forma disclosures as required under Statement 123
[see Note 7).

Recent Pronouncements

FASB Siatement No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
ond Hedging Activities,” which became effective January 1, 2001
requires the Company to recognize all derivatives on the balance
sheet at fair valve. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjust
ed to fair volue through income. If o derivative is a hedge, depend-
ing on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair volue of the
derivative will either be offset against the change in tair value of the
hedged asset, liability, or firm commitment through eamings, or rec-
ognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (*OCI") until
the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion
of a derivative's change in fair valve will be immediately recog
nized in eamings. As of January 1, 2001, the carrying value of the
Company's derivatives equaled their fair value and as a result no
cumulative effect changes were recorded. Additionally, as of June
30, 2001, the fair volue of the Company's derivatives equaled
approximately $3.7 million and waos reflected in other assets and
OClI on the Compony's balance sheet. On July 18, 2001, the
mortgage note poyable 1o which these derivatives relate to was
funded [see Note 2] and their fair value at that time was opproxi-

.-Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mately $676,000 less than their carrying value.  This amount is
being omoitized fo interest expense over the term of the mortgoge
note to which it relotes. Because of the Company’s minimal use of
derivatives, the adoption of this Statement did not have a significant
effect on earnings or the financial position of the Company.

In Oclober 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of longlived Assets”
which supersedes FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of longlived Assets and for longlived Assels to be
Disposed of”; however it retains the fundomental provisions of that
statement related to the recognifion and measurement of the impair-
ment of longlived assets to be "held and used”. In oddition, the
Statement pravides more guidance on esfimating cash flows when
performing a recoverability test, requires that o longrlived asset or
assel group 1o be disposed of other than by sole (e.g. abandoned)
be clossified as "held and used” until it is disposed of, and estab-
lishes more restrictive criteria to classify an asset or asset group as
“held for sale”. The Company’s management does not anticipate
that the adoption of this statement will have an effect on the earer
ings or the financial position of the Company.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounis have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation.

2. Mortgage Notes Payable -

OnJune 1, 2001, the Company refinanced a $70 miltion short
term variable rate mortgage note with a five year $75 million fixed
rale morlgage note, which bears interest at ©.52% per annum. In
addition, on July 18, 2001, the Company refinonced a $200 mil-
lion shortterm variable rate mortgage note with a ten year $250
million fixed rate morigage note, which bears inferest ot 6.867%
per annum. As ¢ result of these refinancings, cerain unamortized
loan costs were wiitlenoff and accounted for as an extroordinary
loss on the accompanying statement of operations. The nel ‘pro-
ceeds of approximately $50.4 million received by the Company as
a result of these refinancings was used to repay maturing fixed rate
debt, the Company’s unsecured credit focility and for working cap-
ital purposes.

On July 24, 2001, the Company repaid a morigage note in the
amount of approximately $15.5 million from @ portion of the pro-
ceeds received from the secured debt financing of the property
located at 219 Third Avenue, New York, NY. In addition, during
the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company repaid two morgoge
notes in the oggregate amount of approximately $8.8 million
through a draw under the Company's unsecured credit focility ond
from available cash on hand. .

At December 31, 2001, there were 16 fixed rate mortgage
notes payable with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of
opproximately $751.1 million. Properties with an aggregate car
rying value at December 31, 2001 of approximately $1.5 billion
are pledged as collateral against the mortgage notes payable. In
addition, approximately $46.1 million of the $751.1 million is
recourse 1o the Company. The morigage notes bear inferest at rates
ranging trom 6.45% to 10.10%, and mature between 2004 and
2027 The weighted average interest rales on the outstanding mort-
goge noles payable at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
were approximately 7.3%, 7.8% and 7.6%, respectively. Certain
of the morigage notes payable are guaranteed by certain limited
partners in the Operating Partnership and/or the Company.
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Notes to Conseliduted Financinl Statements (continved)

Scheduled principal repayments to be made during the next five
years and thereafter, for morigage notes payable cutstanding of
December 31, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

Scheduled Due ot
principal malurity Total
$ N3s 0§ — § 336
12,559 — 12,559
13493 2616 16,100
14,462 18,553 33015
14,007 129,920 144,017

130,347 403,674 534,021

$196314 $ 554,763 $ 751077

3. Unsecured Credit Facility

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a three year
$575 million snsetured revolving credit facility (the "Credit
Facility} from JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative ogeni, UBS
Warburg ILC as syndication agent and Deutsche Bark as docur
mentalion ogent. The Credit Facility matures in September 2003
and borrowings under the Credit Facility are currently priced off
LBOR plus 105 basis points.

The Company utilizes the Credit Focility primaily 16 finance real
eslate investments, fund its real estate development activities and for
working capital purposes. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had availability under the Credit Focility to borrow an additional
$303.4 million (of which, $37.4 million has been allocated for out:
standing undrawn letters of credit].  Subsequent to December 31,
2001, the Company poid down the Credit Focility by $84.6
million which was received from the sale of o 49% interest in the
property located at 219 Third Avenue, New York, NY [see Note
6} and thereby increased its availability under the Credit Facility to
$388 million.

The Company capitalized inierest incurred on borrowings to fund
cerain development projects in the amount of $10.2 million,
$11.5 million and $9.8 million for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

4. Senior Unsecured Notes

As of December 31, 2001, the Operaling Parinership had out
standing approximately $449.5 million [nel of issuance discounts)
of senior unsecured notes (the “Senior Unsecured Notes”). The fok
lowing table sets forth the Operating Partnership’s Senior Unsecured
Notes and other related disclosures {dollars in thousands):

Face Coupon
Issuance Amount Rate  Term  Maturity

August 27, 1997 $150,000 7.20% 10 yrs. August 28, 2007
March 26, 1999 $100,000 7.40% 5 yrs. March 15, 2004
March 26, 1999 $200,000 7.75% 10 yis. March 15, 2009

Interest on the Senior Unsecured Notes is payable semiannually
with principal and unpaid interest due on the scheduled maturity
dotes. in oddition, the Senior Unsecured Notes issued on March
26, 1999 were issued at an aggregate discount of $738,000.
Such discount is being amortized over the term of the Senior
Unsecured Notes to which they relate.

5. Land Leases and Air Rights

The Company leases, pursuant to noncancellable operating leas-
es, the land on which twelve of its buildings were constructed. The
leases, which conlain renewal options, expire between 2009 and
2084. The leases either contain provisions for scheduled increases

in the minimum rent of specified infervals or for adjustments to rent
based upon the fair marke! value of the underlying land or ofher
indexes at specified inlervals. Minimum ground rent is recognized
on a shaightline basis over the terms of the leases. The excess of
amounts recognized over amounts contraciually due is approxi-
mately $3.0 million and $2.7 million af December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. These amounts ore included in accrued expens:
es and other liabilities on the accompanying balonce sheets.

In addition, the Company, through the acquisition of certain prop-
erlies, is subject to two air rights lease agreements. These lease
agreemenis hove terms expiring between 2048 and 2073, includ-
ing renewal opfions.

Future minimum lease commilments refating to the land leases
and air rights lease agreements during the next five years and there-
after are as follows {in thousands):

Year ended December 31, land leases Air Rights

2002 $ 2688 § 366
2,687 369
2,811 379
2,814 379
2,795 379
Thereafter ... 49,921 4,658

$ 63716 § 6,530

During 2001, the Company, of ils option, ccquired the lessor's
rights to the air rights lease cgreemeni for the property located at
120 West 45th Steet, New York, NY for opproximately $7.7 mil-
lion. As o result, the Company's obligotion to pay rent under this
lease agreement was eliminoted

6. Commercial Real Estate Investments

As of December 31, 2001, the Compony owned ond operated
77 office properties linclusive of eleven office properties owned
through jcint ventures) comprising opproximately 13.8 million
square feet, 103 industrial properties comprising approximately
6.8 million square feet and two relail properties comprising approx-
imately 20,000 square feet located in the Tri-Siale Area.

The Compony also owns cpproximotely 254 ocres of land in 12
separate porcels of which the Company can develop approximate-
ly two million squore teet of office space and opproximately
450,000 square feel of industiial spoce. The Company is also obli-
gated 1o purchase, during the first quorter of 2002, 52.7 acres of
land located in Valhalla, NY on which the Company con develop
approximately 875,000 square feet of office spoce. In addition, the
Company owns a 32 acre lond parcel in Rye Brook, NY which is
under contract for sole for approximately $22.3 million. The closing
is scheduled to occur during 2002.

The Company also owns a 357,000 square foot office building
in Orlando, Florida and has invested opproximately $17.0 million
in o nofe receivable secured by a partnership interest in Omni
Partner's, L.P, owner of the Omni, o 575,000 square foot Class A
office property located in Uniondale, NY and $36.5 million under
three notes which bear interest at rates ranging from 10.5% to 12%
per annum and are secured by o minority pariner’s preferred unit
interest in the Operating Partnership and certain real property.

On December 21, 2001, the Compary formed o joint venture
wilth the New York Stafe Teachers’ Refirement System {"NYSTRS")
whereby NYSTRS ocquired a 49% indirect inferest in the property
locoted ot 919 Third Avenue, New York, NY for $220.5 million
which included $122.1 million of its proportionate share of secured
morigage debt and approximately $98.4 million of cash which
was then distributed to the Company. As a resuli, the Compony
realized a gain of approximately $18.9 million.  Subsequent to
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December 31, 2001, net proceeds from this sale were used pri-
marily to repay borrowings under the Credit Facility and for work-
ing copital pusposas.

During the¥ear ended December 31, 2001, the Company sold
five office properties oggregating approximately 678,000 square
feet for $82.1 million, a 26,000 square foot industial property for
$2.8 million and its semaining preferied interest in Keystone
Property Trust for $35.7 million. As a result of these sales the
Compony redlized a net gain, of approximately $1.3 million. Net
proceeds from these sales were used primarily to repay borrawings
under the Credit Facility and 1o establish an escrow account with o
qualified intermediary for o future exchonge of real property pur-
suant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, The
Company has identified approximately 52.7 acres of land located
in Valhalla, NY for the purposes of this exchange [see Note 13).

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the Company entered info
a conkract fo sell two Closs A office properties, located in
Wesichester County, NY, aggregoting approximately 157,000
square feet for opproximately $18.5 million. The closing is sched:
uled to occur during the second quarter of 2002,

7. Stockholders' Equity

An OP Unit and a share of Class A common stock have essen-
tially the some economic characteristics as they effectively share
equally in the net income or loss and distributions of the Operating
Partnership. Subject to certain holding periods OP Units may either
be redeemed for cash or, ot the election of the Company, for shares
of Class A common stock on @ oneforone basis

The Company currently has issued and outstanding 10,283,513
shares of Class B Exchangeable Common Stock, par value $.01
per share the "Class B common stock”). The shares of Class B com-
mon stock currently receive an annual dividend of $2.5968 per
share, which is subject to adjustment annually based on @ formula
which measures increases or decreoses in the Company's Funds
From Operations, as defined, over @ base year. The shares of
Class B common stock are exchangeable af any time, af the option
of the holder, into an equal number of shares of Class A common
stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company subject fo cus
tomary antidilution odjustments. The Company, at its option, may
redeem any or all of the Class B common stock in exchange for an
equal number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock
at any time following November 23, 2003,

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized the pur-
chase of up to an additional five million shares of the Company’s
Class B common stock and/or its Class A common stock.
Transactions conducted on the New York Stock Exchange will be

effected in accordance with the sofe harbor provisions of the-

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and may be terminated by the
Company af any time. Previously, the Company had purchased
and retired 1,410,804 shares of Class B common stock at an aver-
age price of $21.48 per.Class B share and 61,704 shares of

Class A common stock ot an average price of $23.03 per Closs -

A share for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $31.7 million.

The Comparny curenty has issued and outstanding 9,192,000 shares of
7 625% Series A Convertidle Cumultive Prefened Stock the “Series A prer
fered stock’). The Series A preferred stock is redeemable by the Compony
on o afier April 13, 2003 at o price of approximately $25.95 per share
with such price decreasing, of annual infervals, to $25.00 per share over a
five year period. In addiion, the Series A prefered stock, o the option of the
hokder, is convestible anytime info the Company’s Class A common siock ata
price of $28.51 per share

The Company currently has issued and outstanding two million
shares of Series B Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock fthe “Series

-Notes te Conseliduted Financial Statements (continued)

B preferred stock”). The Series B preferred stock is redeemoble by the
Company as follows: {i) on or ofier March 2, 2002 to and including
June 2, 2003, at an amount which provides an annual rate of refurn
in respect fo such share of 15%, lii} on or after June 3, 2003 to and
including June 2, 2004, $25.50 per share and {iii} on or after June
3, 2004 and thereafter, $25.00 per share. In addition, the Series B
preferred stock, at the option of the holder, is convertible at anytime
into the Company’s Class A common stock at o price of $26.05 per
share. The Series B preferred stock currently accumulates dividends of
a rate of 8.85% per annum.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, appsoximately
11,553 preferred units of the Operating Partnership, with ¢ liquide-
tion preference value of opproximately $11.6 million, were
exchanged for 456,351 OP Units ot an averoge price of $25.32
per OP Unit. In addition, 660,370 OP Units were exchanged for
an equal number of shares of the Compony’s Class A common stock.

In October 2000, the Company institued @ Shareholder Rights
Plan (the "Rights Plon”} designed 1o protect shareholders from vari-
ous abusive tokeover tactics, including ottempts 1o ocquire control
of the Company at an inadequate price. Under the Rights Plan,
each shareholder receives one Right to acquire one onethousandth
of a share of a series of junior porticipating preferred stock at on
initial purchase price of $84.44 for each share of the Company's
outstanding Class A'common stock owned. The Rights will be exer-
cisable only it a person or group ocquires, or announces on inten-
tion to acquire, 15% or more of the Company’s Class A common
stock, or announces a tender offer which would result in beneficial
ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of the Class A
common stock, If any person acquires 15% or more of the out-
standing shores of Class A common stock or if the Company is
acquired in a merger alter such an acquisition, all Rights holders
excepl the acquiring person will be entiled to purchase the
Company's Class A common stock af a discounted price. The Rights
will expire at the close of business on October 13, 2010, unless
earlier redeemed by the Company.

During July 1998, the Company formed Metropolitan Portners,
LT {"Metropolitan”) for the purpose of acquiring Class A office
properties in New York City. Metopolitan is controlled by the
Company. A minority partner owned an $85 million preferred equi-
ty investment in Metropolitan which accrued distributions ot o rate
of 7.5% per annum for o tworyear period (May 24, 1999 through
May 30, 2001}. On May 31, 2001, the minority partner, at ifs
election, converted its preferred equity invesiment into 3,453,881
shares of the Company’s Class A common stock based on a con-
version price of $24.61 per share. As a result of the minority part-
ner’s conversion of their preferred equity investment, the Company
owns 100% of Metropolitan.

The Company has made loans to certain executive officers to pur-
chase 1,372,393 shares of its Class A common stock af market
prices ranging from $18.44 per share to $27.13 per share. The
loans bear interest at the midderm Applicable Federal Rate and are
secured by the shares purchased. Such loans including accrued
interest will be ratably forgiven each year on the annual anniversary
of the grant date based upon amortization pericds ranging from
four 1o ten years and in certain instances based on meeling cerfain
performance criteria. Loans which are secured by 310,834 shares
of Class A common stock are due with o balloon payment on the
fith anniversary of the grant date occurring in 2002. The loan bak
ances aggregated approximately $24.3 million and $18.7 million
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and have been
included as a reduction of additional poid in capital on the accom-
panying consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity.
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The following 1able sets forth the Company’s reconciliation of numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted eamings per weight-

ed average common share and the computalion of basic and diluted net income {loss) per weighled average share for the Company’s
Class A common stock as required by Statement 128 for the years ended December 31 {in thousands except for eamings per share dota):

2001 2000 1999
Numerotor:
Income {loss) before dividends 1o preferred
shareholders, extraordinary loss and income
allocated to Class B shareholders................................... $(33,406) $112797 $ 85,192
Dividends to preferred shareholders.....................coo (21,866) 125,371} (24,360]
Extraordinary loss {net of share applicable to fimited
pariners and Class B common shoreholders) ... {1,971) {1,032) (389}
{income] loss allocated to Class B common shareholders. .. 13,000 {23,405} {12,914)
Numerator for basic and diluted net income {loss) per share ............... $(44,243) $ 62,989 $ 47,529
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income (loss} per share-
weighted average Class A common shares ...........cc.ocoveenin. 48,121 43,070 40,270
Etfect of dilutive securities:
Common stock qUIVOIBNIS ..o - 475 406
Denominaior for dituted net income [loss| per Class A
common share-adjusted weighted overage
shares and assumed CONVETSIONS ... .ovoeeecse e 48,121 43,545 40,676
Basic net income {loss) per Class A common share:
Basic net income [loss| before extiaordinary loss (.88) $ 149 $ 1.9
Extraordinary loss........ ... TP UUU T TUT (.04) 1.03) {01}
Bosic net income {loss) per Class A common share .................... $ (.92) $ 1.46 $ 1.18
Diluted net income {loss) per Class A common share:
Diluted net income [loss) before extraordinary loss ... U $  (.88) $ 147 $ 1.8
EXtraordingry 108S ... (.04) .02} .01}
Diluted netf income {loss) per Class A common shore ..................... $ (.92) $ 145 $ 17
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.-Neotes to Consolidated Financicl Statements (continved)

The following table sets forth the Company's reconciliation of numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per weight-
ed average common share and the computation of basic and diluted nef income {loss| per weighted overage share for the Company's
Class B common stock as required by Statement 128 for the yeors ended December 31 fin thousands except for earnings per share data):

2001 2000 1990
Numerator:
income [loss) before dividends to preferred shareholders, extraordinary
loss and income oflocated 1o Class A common shareholders .......... $(33,406) $ 112797 $ 85,192
Dividends to preferred sharmeholders ... (21,866) {25,371 [24,360)
Extraordinory loss [net of share applicable fo limited pariners ond
Class A common shareholders) ............................ (624) (364) 1166)
{Income) loss allocated to Class A common shareholders 42,272 (64,021} {47 @18)
Numerator for basic net income {loss) per share ... (13,624) 23,00 12,748
Add back:
Net income allocated to Class A common shareholders.................... — 62,989 47,529
Limited partners’ minority inferest in the operating parnership ........... - 11,669 Q407
Numerator for diluted net income (loss) per share ..o ${13,624) 3 97,699 $ 69,684
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income (loss| per share- weighted average
Class B common ShArEs ... 10,284 10,284 4,744
Effect of dilutive securities:
Weighted average Class A common shares outstanding .............. . —_ 43,070 40,270
Weighled average OP Units cutsianding - 7,696 7.705
Common stock equivalents ... - 475 406
Denominator for diluled net income {loss) per Class B common share-
adjusted weighted average shares and assumed conversions ............ 10,284 61,525 55,125
Basic net income (loss] per Class B common share:
Basic net income (loss) belfore exiraordinary loss................... $ (1.26) $ 2.28 $ 1.91
Extraordinary loss ..o {.06) .04} {.02)
Bosic net income [loss) per Class B common share ... $ {1.32) 3 2.24 $ 1.89
Diluted net income [loss] per Class B common share:
Diluted net income floss) before extraordinary oss.................c...o..... $ (1.26) $ 1.62 $ 1.27
Extraordinarny 1085 ..o (.06) {.03) .01)
Diluted net income (loss) per Class B common share ...................... . § (1.32) $ 1.59 $ 1.26

The Company's compulation for purposes of calculoting the diluted weighted average Class 8 common shares outstanding is based on the assumption thot

the Class B common siock is converted 1o the Compony's Closs A common stock.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continved)

Employee Stock Option Plans and Related Disclosures

The Company has estoblished the 1995, 1996, 1997 and
1998 Employee Stock Option Plans {the “Plons’} for the purpose of
atiracting ond retoiring executive officers, directors and other key
employees. As of December 31, 2001, 1,500,000, 400,000,
3,000,000 and 3,000,000 of the Company's authorized Class A
common shares hove been reserved for issuance under the 1995,
1996, 1997 ond 1998 Plons, respectively.

The foliowing toble sets forth the o;;tions granted under the Plans
and their corresponding exercise price range per share:

Exercise
Options Price Range
Granted (1) From iy To

1995 Employee Stock Option Plon 1,545,038 $12.04 $25.56
1996 Employee Stock Oplion Plan 262,100 $19.63 $26.13
1997 Employee Stock Option Plon 2,485,965 $22.67 $27.04
1998 Employee Siock Opiion Plon 2,280,501 $17.75 $25.67

Total 6,573,604

The following table sets forth the Company's pro forma informa-
fion for its Class A common stockholders for the years ended
December 31:

2001 2000 1999

Pro forma net income (loss}
{in thousands) .................... $(44,719) $62,671 $46,744

Basic pro forma net income {loss)
per weighted avercge share .. $ (93) $ 146 § 116

Diluted pro forma nef income
{loss} per weighted overage
ShAME e, $ 193 % 144 % 1.5

The following table summarizes the Company's stock opfion activity
and reloted information:

(1) Exercise prices have been split adjusted, where applicable.

Options granted to employees generally vest in three equal
installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date
of the grani.

The independent directors of the Company have been granted
oplions to purchase 178,500 shares of Class A common stock pur-
suant to the 1995 Employee Stock Option Plan at exercise prices
ranging from $12.04 1o $25.56 per share and options to pur-
chase 3,000 shares of Class A common stock pursuant to the
1997 Employee Stock Option Plon ot on exercise price of $25.23
per share. The opfions granted to the independent directors were
exercisoble on the date of the grant.

During 2001 ond 2000, employees exercised 182,596 and
280,087 oplions, respeciively resulling in proceeds 1o the Company
of approximately $2,8 million and $4.2 million, respectively.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earmings per
share Is required by Statement 123, and has been determined os
if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options under
the fair volue method of Statement 123, The fair value for these
options was estimaled ot the date of grant using @ Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assump-
tions for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: riskfree interest rate
of 5%; dividend yields of 7.52%, 7.31% and 8.23%; volatility fac-
tors of the expected market price of the Company’s Class A com-
mon stock of .202 ond o weightedoverage expecied life of the
option of five years.

The Black-Scholes opfion valuation model was developed for use
in estimating the foir volue of traded, options which have no vesting
resirictions and are fully tronsferable. In addition, option valuation
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the
expected stock price volafility. Because the Company’s employee
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of
traded options and because changes in the subjective input assump-
fions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable sin-
gle measure of the fair value of its employes stock options.

For purposes of pro formo disclosures, the estimated fair value of
the opfions is amorlized to expense over the options’ vesting period.

Weighted:

Average

Options _Exercise Price

Cutstanding — Jonwary 1, 1999 ... 4,733,644 % 2222
Granted ..o . 619217 § 20.82
EXICISEd . v (88,308) % 13.99
Forfeited ..o (20,632} $ 23.44
Outstanding — December 31, 1999 ... 5173921 % 2217
Granted . 737,750 $ 2286
Exercised (280,087} $ 13.00
Forfeited (145,000 § 22.50
Outstanding ~ December 31, 2000 ...... 5,486,584 % 2270
Granted ..o 177,500 $ 2261
Exescised. . 182,59¢6) $ 15.41
Foreited ... {118,133) $ 22.84
Outstanding — December 31, 2001 ...... 5,363,355 $§ 2316

The weighted average fair value of options granted for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $1.94,
$2.15 and $2.10, respectively. In oddition, there were
4,674,716 opfions af a weighted average per shore exercise
price of $22.80, 4,498,828 opfions at a weighted average per
shore exercise price of $22.70 ond 5,137,588 opfions ot a
weighted average per share exercise price of $22.17 exercisable
af December 31, 2001, 2000 ond 1999, respectively.

Exercise prices for opfions outstanding os of December 31,
2001 ranged from $12.04 per share 1o $27.04 per share. The
weighted-average remaining contractual life of those options is
approximately 6.67 years.

8. Related Party Transactions

The Company, through its subsidiaries and offilictes, provides
management, |eos‘mg ond construction related services to its progr
erties. Certain executive officers of the Company have continuing
ownership interests in the unconsolidated service companies.

In connection with the IPO, the Company wos granted o ten year
option period to acquire ten properties which are sither owned by
the Reckson Group, the predecessor to the Company, or in which
the Reckson Group owns a noncontrolling minority interest. As of
December 31, 2001 one of these properties was sold by the
Reckson Group 1o a third party and four of these properties were
acquired by the Company for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $35 million, which included the issuance of approx-
imately 475,000 OP Units valued ot approximately $8.8 million.
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During July 1999, the Company sold its interest in o 852,000
square foot development property 1o RCG in exchange fora $12.3
million note. The note accrued interest annually ot the rate of 12%,
had o fivey&ar maturity and was prepayable in whole or in part.
Buring October 1999, RCG made a payment to the Company, in
the form of 97 shares of its nonvoting preferred stock, valved ot
approximately $4.0 million, towards accrued interest and principal
due under the note. During August 2001, RCG made a cash pay-
ment fo the Company for the gemaining bolonce due under the note
plus accrued interest.

During 1997, the Company formed Frontline Capital Group, for-
merly Reckson Service Industries, Inc., {"Froniline”] ond Reckson
Strategic Venture Parners, LLC {"RSVP"). RSVP is o real estote ven-
ture capital fund which invests primarily in real estote and real estate
operating companies outside the Company's core office ond indus-
trial focus and whose common equity is held indirectly by Frontline.
in connection with the formation and spinoff of Frontling, the
Operating Parinership established an unsecured credit facility with
Froriline {the "Frontline Facility”) in the amount of $100 million for
Froniline to use in its invesiment oclivilies, operations and other gen-
eral corporate purposes. The Company hos advanced approxi-
mately $93.4 million under the Frontline Facility. The Operating
Partnership also approved the funding of investments of up fo $100
million relating to RSVP {the "RSVP Commilment”), through RSVPcon-
trolled joint ventures {for REITquolified investments) or advances
made fo Frontline under an unsecured loan facility (the "RSVP
Facility") having terms similor to the Frontline Facility [advances
made under the RSVP Facility and the Frontline Facility herealter, the
“Frontline loans”). During March 2001, the Company increased
the RSVP Commitment 1o $110 million ond as of December 31,
2001, opproximately $109.1 million had been funded through the
RSVP Commitment, of which $59.8 million represents invesiments
by the Company in RSVPcontrolled [REMTquolified] joini ventures
and $49.3 million represents loons made to Frontline under the
RSVP Fecility. As of December 31, 2001, interest accrued [net of
reserves] under the Froniline Facility and the RSVP Focility was
approximately $19.6 miliion.

At June 30, 2001, the Company assessed the recoverability of
the Froniline loons and reserved approximately $3.5 million of the
interest accrued during the three-month period then ended. In oddi-
tion, the Company formed o commitiee of its Board of Directors,
comprised solely of independent directors, to consider any actions
io be token by the Company in connection with the Frontline Loans
and its invesiments in joint ventures with RSVP. During the third quar-
ter of 2001, the Company noted o significont deterioration in
Froniline’s operations and financiol condition ond, based on it
assessment of value and recoverability and considering the findings
and recommendations of the committee and its financial advisor, the
Compoany recorded o $163 million valuation reserve charge, inclu-
sive of anticipated costs, in its consolidated statements of operations
refating 1o its investments in the Froniline loons and joint ventures
with RSVP. The Company has discontinued the accrual of inferest
income with respect to the Froniline Loans. The Company has also
reserved agains! its share of GAAP equity in earnings from the RSVP
controlled jeint ventures funded through the RSVP Commilment until
such income is realized through cash distributions.

Al December 31, 2001, the Company, pursuant to Section 166

.. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continved)

of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, charged off $70 million of
the aforementioned reserve directly related o the Froniline Facility,
including accrued interest.  Subsequent 1o December 31, 2001,
the Company charged off an additional $38 million of the reserve
directly related to the Frontline Facility, including accrued interest
and $47 million of the reserve directly related to the RSVP Facility,
including accrued interest.

Frontline is in default under the Froniline Loans from the Operating
Partnership and has reported that it is currently in discussions with its
creditors, including the Company, and that it may be required to
seek protection from creditors under federal bonkruptey laws.

As o result of the foregoing, the net cormrying volue of the
Company’s investments in the Froniline loons ond joint venture
investments with RSVP, inclusive of the Company's share of previ-
ously accrued GAAP equity in earnings on those investments, is
approximately $65.0 million. Such amount has been reflected in
invesiments in service companies and affiliate loans and joint ven-
tures on the Company's consolidated balonce sheet.

Both the Fronttine Facility and the RSVP Facility have o term of
five years, are unsecured and advances under each are recourse
obligotions of Fronitline. Notwithstanding the valuation reserve,
under the terms of the credit facilities, interest accrues on the
Fronitine loans of a rate equal io the greater of {o) the prime rate
plus twvo percent and (b) 12% per annum, with the rate on amounts
that are outstonding for more than one year increasing annually at
o rate of four percent of the prior year's rate. In March 2001, the
credit facililies were amended fo provide that [i] interest is payoble
only at maturity and i) the Company may transfer all or any por-
tion of its rights or obligations under the credit facilities to its affili-
ates. The Company requested these changes as @ result of changes
in REIT tox lows.

in November 1999, the Company received 176,186 shares of
the common stock of Froniline as fees in connection with the
Fronttine Loans. As a result of cerlain tox rule provisions included in
the REIT Modernization Act, it was determined that the Company
could no longer maintain any equity position in Frontline. As part of
a compensation program, the Company distributed these shares to
certain non-executive employees subject to recourse loans. The
loans were scheduled to be forgiven over time based on continued
employment with the Company. Based on the current value of
Fronttine’s common stock the Company has established o valuation
reserve charge relating to the outstanding balance of these loans in
the amount of $2.4 million.

The Operoting Parinership and Frontline entered info an inter-
company agreement (the "Reckson Intercompany Agreement’) to
formalize their relationship at the time of the spin-olf of Frontline and
to limit conflicts of interest. Under the Reckson Intercompany
Agreement, among other provisions, [i} Froniline granted the
Operating Parinership o right of first opportunity to make any RET-
quolified investment that becomes available 1o Frontline and {ii} the
Operating Partnership gronted Frontline a right fo {a] provide the
Operating Parinership and its tenants with commercial services for
occupants of office, industrial and other property types and (b}
become the lessee of any real properly acquired by the Operating
Partnership if the Operating Parinership determines that, consistent
with the Company’s status as a REIT, it is required 1o enter into a
"master” lease agreement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continved)

9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordonce with FASB Statement No. 107, “Disclosures
About Fair Value of financial Instruments”, management has made
the following. disclosures of estimated fair value at December 31,
2001 as required by FASB Statement No. 107

Cash equivalents and variable rate debt are carried at amounts
which reasonably approximate their fair values.

The fair valve of the Company'’s loggerm debt, morigage notes,
accounts payable and accrued expenses and accounts and nofes
receivable is estimaied based on discounting future cash flows af
interest rales that manogement believes reflects the risks associoied
with longterm debt, morlgage nofes, occounts poyable ond
accrued expenses and accounts and notes receivable of similar risk
and duration. At December 31,2001, the eslimated aggregate fair
value of the Company’s morigage noles ond noles receivable
exceeded their corrying volue by opproximately $1.2 milion and
the aggregote fair value of the Company's long term debt exceeded
its carrying value by opproximately $20.0 million.

Considerable judgment is necessary fo interpret market data ond
develop estimated fair volue. The use of different market assump-
tions and/or eslimation methodologies may have a material effect
on the estimated fair value amounts.

10. Rental Income

The Company’s office and industrial properties are being leased
fo tenants under operating leases. The minimum rentol amount due
under certain leases are generally either subject to scheduled fixed
increases of indexed escalations. In addition, the leases generally
also require that the tenants reimburse the Company for increases in
cerfain operating costs and real estate taxes above base year costs.

Expecied future minimum rents 1o be received over the next five
years and thereafter from leases in effect of December 31, 2001
are as follows [in thousands):

2002 . $ 403421
379,005
350,930
307,900
2006 258,603

1,315,340

$ 3,015,259

11. Segment Disclosure

The Company owns all of the interests in its real estate properties
by or through the Operating Partnership. The Company's portalic
consists of Class A office properties locoled within the New York
City mefropolitan area and Class A suburban office and industriol
properties located and operated within the Tri-State Areo (the “Core
Porffolio"}. The Company's portiolio also includes one office prop-
ey located in Orlando, Florida. The Company hos managing
directors who report direcily to the CoPresidents and Chief
Financial Officer who have been idenlified as the Chiet Operating
Decision Makers because of their final authority over resource allo-
cation, decisions and performance assessment.

The Company does not consider (i} interest incurred on its Credit
Facility and Senior Unsecured Notes and i) the operoting per-
formonce of the office property located in Orlando, Florida as part
of its Core Portfolio’s property operating performance.

The accounting policies of the reporioble segments are the some
as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
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.- Notes to Conselidalted Financiuﬂ,Siu‘lemenis {continuved)

The following tables set forth the components of the Company's revenues and expenses and other related disclosures, as required by
FASB Statement 131 “Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related information”, for the years ended December 31 {in thou-

sands}:
2001
Core Portfolio Other  Consolidated Totals
REVENUES:
Base rents, tenant escalations and reimbursements........ $ 488,515 9,256 $ 497,771
Equity in eornings of rechestate joint ventures and
service companies - 2,087 2,087
Other income ..o 28,772 11,838 40,610
Total Revenues. ... 517,287 23,181 540,468
EXPENSES: ..
Property expenses ... 165,730 2,934 168,664
Marketing, general and adminisiiative ... 20,660 10,087 30,747
Inferest ... 51,378 41,694 93,072
Depreciction and amortization 95,303 7,628 102,931
Total EXPenses. ..o 333,071 62,343 395,414
Income (loss] before minority interests, preferred dividends
and distiibutions, valuation reserves and extraordinary loss  $ - 184,216 (39,162) $ 145,054
Total GSSEIS ..o e $ 2,763,771 230,447 $ 2,994,218
2000
Core Porfiolio Other Consolidated Tolals
Revenues:
Base rents, tenant escalations and reimbursements ... $ 442,326 9,751 $ 452,077
Equity in eornings of real esiate joint veniures
and Service COMPONIES ......oooooiivi e — 4,383 4,383
Other INCOMe ..o e 1,212 52,266 53,478
Total Revenues.. ...l 443,538 66,400 509,938
Expenses:
Property expenses ..o 154,930 2,526 157,456
Markeling, generol and administrative ... 20,606 6,765 27,371
IntRreSt .. 40,465 55,872 96,337
Depreciation and amorfization . 84,401 8,146 92,547
Total Expenses. ..o 300,402 73,309 373,711
income {loss) before minority inferests, preferred dividends
and distributions and extraordinary loss ... $ 143,136 16,909) $ 136,227
Total assets ..o L $ 2,604,404 393,536 $ 2,998,030
1999
Core Portfolio Other Consclidated Tolals
Revenues:
Base rents, tenant escalations and reimbursements ... $ 340,293 28,842 $ 369,135
Equity in eomings of recl estate join! ventures and
SEIVICE COMPONIES ... ittt — 2,148 2,148
Other income ... SO U 448 31,422 31,870
Total REVEMUES . ..o..co.oo.ovee v et 340,741 62,412 403,153
Expenses:
Property eXpenses .. ....ocooiioii i 119,270 6,724 125,994
Marketing, general ond administrative .. 16,981 7,312 24,293
IMErSt ooy 25167 49,153 74,320
Depreciation ond amortization ... 64,097 10,407 74,504
Total EXPeNses. ..ot e 225515 73,596 299,111
Income {loss) before minority interests, preferred dividends :
and distributions and extroordinary loss .................. $ 115,226 (11,184) $ 104,042
Total GSSEIS oo e $ 2317195 416,683 $ 2,733,878
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Notes fo Censcliduted chncml Statements (continved)

12. Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities

Additional supplemental disclosures of nomcash investing and
financing activities are as follows:

On May 31, 20@1, Metropolitan’s minority partrer, of its election,
converted its preferred equily investment info 3,453,881 shares of
the Company’s Class A common stock based on a conversion price
of $24.61 per share.

On December 21, 2001, in connection with the sale of a 49%
indirect interest in the property located at 919 Third Avenue, New
Yok, NY, the Company’s share of “secured morigage debt was
reduced by approximately $122.1 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, opproximately
11,553 preferred units of the Operating Partnership, with a liquide:

- lion preference value of opproximately $11.6 million, were

exchanged for 456,351 OP Units ot an average price of $25.32
per OP Unit. In addition, 660,370 OP Units were exchanged for an
equal number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock.
On June 20, 2000, the Company issued 4,181,818 shares of
Class A common stock in exchange for four million shares of Series B
prefesred siock with a liquidafion preference value of $100 million.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into amended and restated employ-
meni and noncompetition agreements with its chairman and six
executive officers. The agreements are for five years and expire on
August 15, 2005.

The Company is obligated to purchase, for approximately $23.8
million, 52.7 acres of land located in Vatholla, NY on which the
Company can develop approximotely 875,000 square feet of
office space. This acquisition will be financed in port from the sale
proceeds of an office property currently being held by o quolified
intermediary for the purposes of an exchange of real property pur
suant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and

14. Income Taxes

is scheduled 1o dlose in the first quarter of 2002.

The Company had outstanding undrawn letters of credit against
its Credit Facility of approximately $37.4 million and $51.3 million
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

During 2001, based on the Company's value ossessment of ifs
investment in Capfivate Network, Inc., an unrelated technology
based service company, the Company recorded o valuation
reserve charge of approximately $700,000 in is consofidated
slotements of operations.

HQ Global Workplaces, Inc., HQ'] one of the largest providers
of flexible officing solutions in the world and which is controlled by
Frontline currertly operates eleven execulive office centers in the
Compoany's properties, three of which are held through joint ventures.
The leases under which these office centers operale expire between
2008 and 2011, encompass approximately 225,000 square feet
and have current confractual annual bose rents of approximately
$6.7 million. Currently, three of these coffice centers (including one
joint venture location) aggregating 55,000 square feet with current
contractual annual base rents of $1.4 million are in default under their
lease terms. In addition, HQ has been experiencing financial diffi-
culties and on March 13, 2002, voluntarily filed a petition for relief
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bonkmupicy Code. There can be no
assurances as 1o whether HQ will offirm or reject its existing leases
with the Company. At this fime it cannot be determined what impoct
their financial difficulties and bankruptey fling will have on their abit
ity to meet their future lease obligations withthe Company.

The Company sponsors a defined contribution savings plan pur-
suant to section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under such
plan, there are no prior service costs. Employees are generally eli-
gible to participate in the plon cfier six months of service. Employer
contributions are based on a discretionary amount determined by
the Company's management. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company has not made any contributions to the plan.

The following table sets forth the Company's reconciliation of GAAP net income 1o taxable income for the years ended December 31

lin thousands and unaudited):

2001 (Estimated) 2000 1999
GAAP net income {loss) ... oo $ (36,001) $ 111,401 $ 84,637
Minority interests and distributions fo preferred unit holders............ 12,359 23,430 18,850
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debis (net of fimited :
pariners’ minority interest) ... 2,595 1,396 555
Add: GAAP depreciation and amortization . 102,931 Q2 547 T 74,504
less: Tox depreciation and amortizafion ... (74,127) (57,293) 152,146}
GAAP/1tax difference on gains/losses from capital transactions ... {10,097) {8,255) 17,404
Staightline rental income adjustment ... (41,595) (38,785} {10,699}
GAAP/1ox difference on reserve charge-off . 93,000 — —
Other GAAP/tox differences, net ... 10,189 6,445 (3,426}
Toxable income before minority interests ... 59,254 130,886 129,679
MIROTity TNBIESIS ...\ oo (20,246} 131,083} [34,898)
Taxable income 10 REIT ... $ 39,008 $ 09803 $ 94,781

The following table sets forth the Company's reconciliation of cash distributions 1o the dividends paid deduction for the years ended

December 31 {in thousands):

2001 (Eshmoted) 2000 1999

Total cash distibulions ............c.cccovveeivi.. $ 124,942 $ 114,074 $ 90,428
less: cash distributions on restricted shares (1,560) 11,059) (482)
Return of capital ... {74,691) — —
Cash dividends paid .......ocooioii 48,691 113,015 89,946
less: dividends designated fo prior year. ..o - (8,688) (3,399)
Add: dividends designated from following year...................... - — 8,688
Dividends poid deduction. ...........ccocooiriiiiiiiee $ 48,691 $ 104,327 $ 95235
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The following table sets forth the choracterization of the Company's taxable distributions per share on its

Class A cammon and Class B common stock for the years ended December 31

CLASS A COMMON STOCK 2001 (Estimated) 2000 1999

Ordinary inCOMe ..o $ .349 21.5%  $ 1.364 90.0% $ 1.236 92.7%
Return of capital ................. . L192 73.5% 0.000 0.0% 0.000 0.0%
Longrterm rate capital gains, ... .019 1.2% 0.086 5.7% 0.097 7.3%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain . . .061 3.8% 0.065 4.3% 0.000 0.0%
Totals .o $1.621 100.0% _ $ 1.515 100.0% _$ 1.333  100.0%
CLASS B COMMON STOCK 2001 (Estimated) 2000 1999

Ordinary INCOME ..o $ .537 21.5%  $ 2.090 90.0% $ 0912 927%
Return of capital ... U 1.838 73.5% 0.000 0.0% 0.000 0.0%
longterm rate capital gains ... . .029 1.2% 0131 57% 0.071 7.3%
Unrecoptured Section 1250 gain ..., .094 3.8% 0.099 4.3% 0.000 0.0%
TolalS oo $2.498 100.0% $ 2.320 100.0% $ 0983 100.0%

15. Quarterly Financial Dota (Unaudited)

The following summary represents the Company's results of operations for each fiscal quarter during 2001 and 2000 {in thousands,

excep! shore amounts):

2001
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Tolal revenues ..o $ 130,886 $ 132,387 $§ 133,027 $ 144,168
Income before preferred dividends and distributions, minority
" interests, valuation reserves and extraordinary loss ... $ 35,243 § 32,368 § 31,079 $§ 46,364
Preferred dividends and distributions ... (6,085) {5,928) {5,996) (5,968)
MINOTiy IMEIESIS ..ot (8,470) (6,681) 11,592 (6,689)
Valuation reserves on investments in affiliote loans and

joint véntures and other investments ....................... —_ — (163,000} (3,101)
Extraordinary 10ss............ooooiii . - - (2,595) -
Net income {loss) allocable to common shareholders ... $ 20,688 $ 19,759 $ (128,920) $ 30,606

Net income (loss) allocable to:

Class A common shareholders.............ccccocvveei. $ 15,308 $ 15,109 §$§ (97,944) $ 23,284

Class B common shareholders. e 5,380 4,650 {30,976) 7,322
TOMOl o $ 20,688 $ 19,759 § (128,920) $ 30,606
Basic net income {loss) per weighted average common share: )

Class A COMMON ..o $ 34 $ 32 8 (1.93) § 47

Exiroordinary loss per Class A common ... - - (.04) -

Basic net income {loss) per weighted average Class A

Common share ........ocoviiiiii e $ 34§ 32 S (1.97) § .47

Class B common......ecooeiiiiiiiee e $ 52 § 45§ (295) $ 4

Extroordinary loss per Class B common.................... —_ — {.06) -

Basic net income {loss) per weighted ovéroge

Class B COMMON..............coooiiiiiiiiiieeiec $ .52 § 45  $ (3.01) $ 71

Basic weighted average common shares outsianding:

Class A commMOn ... 45,483,544 47,221,917 49,715,423 49,994,025

Class B coMMON. ..ot 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513
Diluted net income (loss) per weighted average

common share:

Class A COMMON ... $ 33 $ 32 S (1.97) § .46

Class B COMMON ..o $ 37 $ 34§ (3.01) $ .50
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding:

Class A COMMON ..ot 45,949,816 47,600,390 49,715,423 51,005,494

Class B common..........ocooovioioi e 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513
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2000
: First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Toal FEVENUES ... ... ..o $ 117,659 $ 125455 $ 140,302 § 126,522
Income before preferred dividends and distributions,
minority interests and extraordinaly loss ................ $ 28,080 $ 35,836 $ 43383 ¢ 28,028
Preferred dividends and distibutions .......................... {7,985) (7,857) (6,085) {6,085)
Minority interests {4,253} (5,008) (5,924) (5,604
Extraordinary loss — — (1,396) —
Net income allocable to common shareholders.............. $ 15,842 $ 22,971 $. 29,978 $ 17,239
Net income allocable to: ..o
Class A common shareholders .. o % 11446 $ 16,655 $ 22,143 $ 12,745
Closs B common shareholders 4,396 6,316 7,835 4,494
Total Lo $ 15,842 $ 22,971 $ 20078 % 17,239
Basic nef income per weighted average common share:
Class A COMMON o.ooviiiiii $ .28 $ 40 $ S8 28
Extraordinary loss per Class A common ................. — — (02} —
Basic net income per weighled average
Class A COMMON ..ot e $ .28 $ 40 $ 49 $ .28
Class B COMMON vvooivreeee e e $ 43 $ 61 $ 80 $ A4
Extraordinary loss per Class B common ............... — — (.04) —
Basic net income per weighted average
Class B common ..o 3 43 $ 61 $ 76 % 44
Basic weighted averoge common shares outstanding:
Class A common ... 40,382,182 41,343,118 45,178,451 45,326,438
Class B common 10,283,598 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513
Diluted net income per weighted averoge common share:
Class A common $ 28 3 40 $ 48 % .28
Class B common $ .31 $ 44 $ 53 8 31
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding:
Closs A COMMON —.ooovoe e 40,709,045 41,700,478 49,818,354 45,954,256
Closs B €OMMON ... e 10,283,598 10,283,513 10,283,513 10,283,513
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‘Repert of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors and Stockholders.
Reckson Associates Realty Corp.

We have oudited, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Reckson Associotes Realty Corp. as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of oper-
ations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the pericd ended December 31, 2001, These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to exprass an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stondards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements ore free of material misstote-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence sup-
porling the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes ossessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial siotement presentation. We believe that our
oudits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the financial stalements referred 1o above present
fairly, in oll material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Reckson Associctes Realty Corp. ai December 31, 2001 ond
2000, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United Stales.

St ¥ MLL?

ERNST & YOUNG P

New York, New York
February 20, 2002,
except for Note 13,
as fo which the date
is March 13, 2002



Price Range of Common Stock and Distribution History

CLASS A COMMON STOCK

The Company's Class A common stock begon trading on the
New York Stock Exshange (NYSE") on May 25, 1995, under the
symbol "RA". The following table sets forth the quarterty high and
low closing prices per share of the Company’s Class A common
stock as reported on the NYSE and the distributions paid by the
Compony for each respective quarter ended.

CLASS B COMMON STOCK

The Company’s Class B common stock begon frading on the
NYSE on May 25, 1999 under the symbol “RA.B". The following
table sets forth the quarterly high and low dosing prices per share
of the Company's Closs B common stock as reported on the NYSE
and the distributions paid by the Company for each respective
quarter ended.

High *  tow Distribution High low Distribution
March 31, 2000.............. $21.313 $17.688 $.37125 Moarch 31, 2000.............. $22.875 $18.875 $.5600
Jure 30, 2000 ..o $24.063 $18.750 $.3860{1}  June 30, 2000 .. $25.438 319938 $.5867)1)
September 30, 2000........ $26.813 - $23.625 $.3860 September 30, 2000 ........ $27.563 $24.625  $.6000
December 31, 2000 ........ $26.000 $21.875 $.3860 December 31, 2000 ........ $27.563 $22.500  $.6000
March 31, 2007 ............. $25.88 $21.90 $.3860 March 31, 2001.............. $27.50 $22.90 $.6000
June 30, 2001 $23.90 $21.14  $.4246(2) June 30, 2001 ... .. 525.00 $22.40 $.6164y
September 30, 2001 ........ $24.15 $21.90 5.4246 Seplember 30, 2001 ........ $25.60 5$23.29 $.6492
December 31, 2001 ........ $24.46 $22.15 $.4246 December 31, 2001 ... $25.76 $23.55 $.6492

11] Commencing with the distribution for the quarter ending June 30, 2000,
the Board of Directors of the Compony increased the quanterly
distribution to $.3860 per share, which is equivalent to an annual
distribution of $1.544 per share.

{2) Commencing with the distribution for the quarter ending June 30, 2001,
the Board of Directors of the Company increased the quarterly
distribution to $.4246 per share, which is equivalent to an annual
distribution of $1.6984 per share

{1} Commencing with the distribution for the three month period ended
July 31, 2000, the Board of Directors of the Compony increased the
quarterly distribution 1o $.60 per share, which is equivalent to an annual
distribution of $2.40 per share

(2) Commencing with the distribufion lor the three month period ended
July 31, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company increased
the quarterdy distribution 1o $.6492 per share, which is equivalent to an
onnual distibution of $2.5968 per share.

e vea e
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2001 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Donald Rechler
Chairman of the Beard and
CoChief Executive Officer

Roger Rechler R
Vice Chairman of the Board and
Executive Vice President

Scott Rechler
Director, Chairman of the

Executive Commitiee and
CoChief Executive Cficer

Mitchell Rechler

Director, CoPresident and

Chiet Administrative Officer
President of Reckson Management
Group, Inc.

Gregg Rechler

Director, CoPresident, Chief
Operating Officer and Secrefary
President of Reckson Construction
Group, Inc.

Harvey Blau

Director

Chairman of Griffon Corporation
and Chairman of

Aeroflex Incorporated

Leonard Feinstein

Director

CoChairman and
CoChief Executive Officer of
Bed Bath & Beyond, Inc.

Herve Kevenides

Director

Associate Clinical Professor -
Master of Real Estate Program,
New York University and President
of Metropolitan Analysis and
Forecasting Corp.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

John Klein

Direcior

Chairman and Treasurer of the
law firm of Mevyer, Suozz,
English & Klein, P.C. and
former Suffolk County Executive

Lewis Ranieri
Director
Chairman of Hyperion Pariners

Conrad Stephenson
Director
Real Estate Consultant

Walter Gross
Chairman Emeritus of the Board

Michael Maturo

Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

Jason Barnett
Executive Vice President and
General Counsel

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Susan McGuire
Vice President Invesior Relations

For questions about the Company,
to subscribe 1o the Company’s dis
ribution list or to request corporate
information such os a copy of the
Company's Form 10K and annudl
report filed with the Securifies and
Exchange Commission, please
contact Susan McGuire at the
Company's corporate headquarters
or send requests by email to
investorrelationsereckson.com. For
additional information please visit
the Company’s web site at
waww.reckson.com.

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

225 Broadhollow Road
Melville, New York 11747-4883
Telephone: {631) 6944900
[888) RECKSOMN
Facsimile:  1631) 6226790

CORPORATE COUNSEL

Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP
875 Third Avenue
New York, New York 10022

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young ULP
1285 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10019

TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
59 Maiden lane

New York, New York 10038
Telephone: (877) 7770800

STOCK LISTING

The stock of Reckson Associates
Realty Corp. is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange
under the following symbols:
Class A Common Stock: RA
Class B Common Stock: RA.B
Series A Preferred Siock: RAA

ANNUAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

The annual meeting of shareholders
of Reckson Associates Realty Corp.
will be held on May 23, 2002

at 9:30 a.m. at The Omni, 333
Earle Ovington Boulevard,
Uniondale, New York.

Certain matters discussed within this annual report are "forwardHooking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securifies Litigation Reform Act of 1925, Although
the Company believes the expectations reflected in such forworddooking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, forwarddooking statements are not guorantees

- of results and no assurance can be given thot the expected results will be delivered.  Such forwarddooking statements are subject to cenain risks, rends ond uncertainties

that could cause actual resuls to differ materially fom those expected. Among those risks, frends and uncertinfies are the ‘generol economic climate, including the condi
tions affecting industries in which our principal tenants compete; changes in the supply of and demand for office and industrial properties in the New York TriState areq;
changes in interest rate levels; downturns in rental rate levels in our markets and our ability to lease of redease space in a timely manner at current of anficipated rental rate
levels; the availability of financing 1o us or our tenants; changes in operating costs, inchuding utility cos's; repayment of debt owed to the Company by third parties (includ-
ing Frontline Capital Group); risks associated with joint ventures; and other risks associated with the development and acquisifion of properties, including risks that devet
opment may not be completed on schedule, that the tenants will not take occupancy or pay rent, or that development or operating costs may be greater than anficipated.
For further information on factors that could impact Reckson, reference is made to Reckson's filings with the Securifies and Exchange Commission. Recksen is subject to the
reporiing requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission and undertakes no responsibility to update or supplement information contained in this annuat report that

subsequently becomes untrue.
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